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BOARD’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

Dear Shareowners,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 95th
Annual Reportof the Company along with Audited
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account for the yaar
ended 31st March 2018.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND RESULTS

The summary of consolidated {Company and its Wholly
Owned Subsidiary) operating results for the vear and
Appropriation of divisible profits is given below:

(¥ In Lakhs)
S YEAR ENDED
PARTICULAR e
31:03:2018.:1 31.03 2017

Saies and other income | 12914
Profit/(Loss) for the year 245
before Depreciation
t.ess: Depreciation {187
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 48
l.ess: Provisien for Taxation .

- Current 2

- Deferred G
Profit/{Loss) after tax 40
Tola! Other Comprehensive ;
income/(Loss) for the year, net of tax (1
Add: Batance brought forward frem 766

Profit & Loss Account
Amount available for appropriation [ (373) 795

Notfe: The above results are in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules
issued thereunder and other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in India. Accordingly, previous period’s
figures have been reclassified/regrouped, wherever
necessary.

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND OPERATIONS
The consolidated Sales & Operating income during the year
ended under review is Rs.11,241 lakhs as compared to
Rs.12,%14 lakhs of the previous year.
There were many un-favorable events in the yeargone by

- Sudden and excessive spurt in the prices of raw
materials, (Many of these have also declined by May,

2018)
- During implementation of GST two major things
happened.

¢ There was a huge reduction in sale in the quarter April to
June 2017 in anticipation of GST. We lost sales of about
Rs.12 crinAprii-dune 2017 compared to the same guarter
of 2016.

= Whiie cost to final customer including taxes remained the
same, the value realized by the company declined by
2.25%. On the top line this is not so significant but the
entire 2.25% of sales was reduced from the botfom line,
thatis there was a drop in profit to the extent of about Rs.2
crores.

Mainly because of the above factors, the Company has
inousred a loss amounting to Rs.#,291 Lacs during the
year 2017-18. All the above have now refurmned to
normaley. Apart from this, the management is working on
the effectiveness of manufacturing cost as well as
increasing sales volume and is confident of generating
operating surplus in current year.

3. DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not propose any dividend for the year under
review.

4. TRANSFERTO GENERAL RESERVE

No amount is fransferred to General Reserve for the year
under review.

5. PARTICULARS OF LLOANS, GUARANTEES OR
INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans and has not made any
investments in other entities. The Company is a co-guarantor
for foan taken by Sudarshan Services Ltd which is within
permissible limits.

6. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, your
Directors state, on the basis of informatien furnisheg by the
Management and Audiors of the Company, that:

i. applicable accounting standards have been followed in the

preparation of the annual accounts.

ii. Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and
applied consistently and the judgments and estimates made
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of the affairs of the Company as at 31st March
2018, and to the profit of the Company for the year ended on
that dafe

-proper and sufficient care have been taken for the
maintenance of adequate records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.

iv. the accompanying Annual Accounts have been prepared on

agoing concern hasis.

v. proper internal financial controls were in place and were

adequate and operating effectively; and

vi. proper systems o ensure compliance with the provisions of

applicable laws were in place and were adequate and
operating effectively

i

7. DIRECTORS
a. Board of Direciors

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Sanat
Shirali wiil retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for re-appointment,

b. Meetings of the Board

Five (5) Board Meetings were held during the financial year
ended March 2018 on 22nd May 2017, 10th August 2017,
12th September 2017, 14th December 2017 and 12th
February, 2018. The time gap between any fwo meetings
was not exceeding one hundred and twenty days. These
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meelings ware held as per the provision of section 173 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

¢. Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have given the
declaration to the Company that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-section 8 of Section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

d. Board Evaluation

The Board has reviewed and evaluated the performance of
all individual directors and the independent direclors have
reviewed and evaluated lhe performances of Chairman,
Managing Director and non-independent Directors during
the year al their meeting held on 12h February, 2018, They
found that none of the board members have contravened
any of the statutory provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and
its relevant rules, regulations, guidelines etc. applicable o
themin exercise of their duties and responsibilities.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANGCE

As the Company's paid up capital is Rs.116.25 Lacs and
Turnover is Rs,11241 Lacs it is not under the purview of
Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the Lisling
Agreement with Stock Exchanges, and hence the Report is
not attached,

9. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Commitlee, The Board has on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee framed a policy for sefection and appointment of
Directors, Senior Management, Key Managerial Personnel
and their remuneration. The Policy is available on
Company's website www.afdil.com,

10. POLICY ON DIRECTOR’'S APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

Az per Seclion 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company was required to constitufe a Nomination and
Remuneralion Committee for the purpose of identifying
qualified persons for appointment of Directors and Senior
Key Manageral Personnel in future and to fix their
remuneration and other allowances.

11 VIGHIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy for
Directors and employess to report their genuine concern.

12. SUBSINIARIES

There is only one Wholly Owned Subsidiary Viz., Anglo-
French Drugs & Industries Pte. Ltd., Singapore, As required
under Rule 8{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
the Board's Report has been prepared on standalone
financial statemoents and a report on performance and
financial position of Wholly Owned Subsidiary included in
the consolidated  financial statements is included in the
financial statemenis.

In accordance with third proviso of Section 136(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report of the Company,
containing therein its standalone and the consolidated
financial statements has been placed on the website of the
Company, www.aldil.com.

~
i
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13.FIXED DEPQGSITS

Your Company has not invited/accepted any fixed deposits
during the year under review, as such; no amount of principal
or interest on fixed deposil was oulstanding on the date of
balance sheet,

4. AUDITORS

a} Btatutory Auditors;

In compliance with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014, M/s KAMG & Associates, Chartered
Accountants (FRMI1T102712) has been appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company, till the conclusion of 99th
Annhuai General Meeting of Company i.e. forthe FY-2021-22,
as approved by the Members,

Further, pursuant o the requirement of Section 139 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Slatutory Auditors
is 16 be ratified by the members al every Annual General
Meeting. Members are requested to ratify their appointment
forthe Financial Year 2018-19.

The Auditors Report for the financial year 2017-18 does not
contain any qualification, reservations or adverse remarks.
The Auditors reporiis enclosed with the financial statement in
this Annual Report,

b) Cost Auditors:

G.M. & Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore (Firm
Registration No.000574) is appeointed as Cosl Auditors 1o
conduct cost audit of the accounts maintained by the
Company, in respect of the Formulations products for the
Financial Year 2018-19.

c}Internal Auditors:
During the year under review, M/s B Choraria & Mates.,

Charlered Accountants, Bangafore carried out the internal
audit exercise and submitted their report,

15, INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL {IFCY SYSTEM

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Directors have the responsibility for ensuring that the
company has implemented robust systermn / framework for
IFCs to provide them wilh reasonable assurance regarding
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of controls (o
gnable the Direclors to meet with their responsibiity,

The Company has in place a sound financial control system
and framework in place to ensure:

- The orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

- Bafeguarding of ils assets,

- The prevention and detection of frauds and errors,

= The accuracy and completeness of lhe accounting records
and

- Thelimely preparation of reliable financial information,

Aformal documented IFC framework has been impiementod
by the Company. The Board reguiarly reviews the
effectiveness of contiols and takes necessary corrective
actions where weaknesses are identified as a result of such
reviews. This review covers entity fevel controls, process
ievel controls, fraud risk controls and Information Technology
environment, Based on this evaluation, there is nothing that
has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate any
malerial break down in the funclioning of these conbrols,

:



procedures or systems during the year. There have been no
significant evenis during the year that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal financial controls. The management has also come
to a conclusion that the IFC and other financiai reporting was
effectiva during the year and is adequate considering the
business operations of the Company.

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
& OUTGO

The Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure | to the Report
and forms a part of this Report.

17. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAIL RETURN

The extract of the Annual Return required under Section 134
(3} (a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the
Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules 2014 is
annexed here with as Annexure |1,

18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The fotal number of employees of the company as oh March
31, 2018 was 602 as against 641 as on March 31 , 2017,

19. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company complied with all appiicable Secretarial
Standards

20. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND
{IEPF)

Pursuant to applicable provisions of Companies Act, read
with the IEPF Authority (Acocounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) rufes, 2016, all unpaid and unclaimed dividends are
required to be transferred by the Company to the IEPF
established by the Goverrment of India after the completion
of 7 years. Further according to the rules, the shares on
which the dividend has not been paid are cfaimed by the
shareholders for 7 consecutive years or more shafl be
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF authority.
Accordingly the company has transferred the unclaimed and
unpaid dividends of Rs,1,53,330/-, Further corresponding
shares shali be transferred as per the requirements of the
IEPF rules. The details are avaitabie on ourwebsite.

21, RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has implemented a risk management poiicy
for the Company including identification therein of efemenis
of risk, if any, and the same has been inserted in the website
ofthe Company.

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSAGTIONS

Related parly transactions that were entered into during the
financial year were on arm's iength basis and were in
ordinary course of business. The Company is a co-guarantor
for loan taken by Sudarshan Services Lid which is within
permissible limits. There are no materially significant related

party transactions made by the Company which may have
potentfal conflict with the interest of the Company.

There are no material related party transactions which are
not in ordinary course of business or which are not on artr's
length basis and hence there is no information to be provided
asreguired under Section 134(3} (h) ofthe Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188(1) of the
companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
{(Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of contracts and
arrangements entered between the Company and the
Related Parties, inthe prescribed Form AQC-2, are as per
Annexurefll.

23. SECRETARIALAUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed M/s Swaroop, Ravishankar &
Associales, a firm of Company Secretaries in Fractice to
undertake the Secretariai Audit of the Company. The
Secretarial Audit Report is attached as Annexure V. The
Secretariat Auditor Report for the Financial Year ended 31st
March 2618 does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

24, GREEN INITIATIVES

Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2017-18 and the
notice of the 95th Annuat General Meeting are sent to all
members whose e-mail addresses are registerad with the
Company/Depository Paricipants, For members who have
notregistered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are
sentin the permitted mode.

25. CHANGES IN KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS

Mr. Naveen Gupta ceased to be Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from 11th August 2017, Mr. Manish
Jagnani was appeinted as Chief Financial Officer with effect
from 12th February 2018 and Mr. Aditya Jain has been
appointed as Company Secretary with effect fom 10th
August 2017 in place of Mr. B, Subbarayalu. Mr. Aditya Jain
teasedto bethe Company Secretary from 18th May 2018.

26. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors acknowledges with gratitude the continued
support, patronage and co-operation received from the
Medical Profession, Trade, Banks, other Business
Associates, the Central and State Governments and the
Shareholders.

Your Directors alse place on record their appreciation of all

the employees of the company for their valuable coniribution
and dedicated service.

Onbehalfofthe Board
Bengalury ABHAY KANORIA
30th May 2018 Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE | TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT

The Information required under Section 134(3)m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3} of the Companies (Accounis)
Rules, 2074 and forming part of the Direclors' Report for the year ended 31st March 2018.

A CONBERVATION OF ENERGY:

a} Energy conservation measures taken The Caompany is constanlly

h) Additional investments and proposals, i concerned about energy conservation,
any, being Implemented for reduction of bul having regard {0 the present
consumyption of energy. tevel of consumption and the nature

¢} Impact of the measures at (a) and {t) of aclivities, which are not energy
for reduction of energy consuimption infensive, the need for taking special
and consequent impact on the cost of energy conservation measures has
production of goods. _J above not been immediately fefl.

d) Total energy consumption and energy Please refer Form A hereunder.
consumplion per unit of production,

FORM A
[See Rulg 2}

Form for disclostire of particulars with respect to conservation of energy.
A, Power and Fuel consumption:

1. Electricity
a) Purchased:

Previous Year

Units 1637200

Total Amount | % in Lacs] 120
.35

Rate/Unit [T} !

b) Own Generation:

i} Through Diesel Generator 16656
Unitg 2.30
Units per Lir, of Diesei Oil 24.77
Cost/Unit [ ¥ ] -

i) Through Steam Turbine/Generator ‘

, Nil
Units
Units per Lt of Fuef OillGas
Cost/Unit[2 ]
2. Coal -
Quantily (tonnes)
Tolal Cost [T ] Nil

3 Furnace Qil :-:Curren_t 'Yeaf, Previous Year
Quantity (K, Lirs) Nil
Total Amount { £ in ‘Lacs} Nil

i Nil
Average Rate [ & per Ltrg] 1

4 Others / Internal gencration
Quantity
Total Cost NH
Rate/Unit




B. Consumption per unit of Production :
Particuiars

Products (with details)
Units

Electricity

Furnace Oil

Coal

Others

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Standard [if any)

Taking inte account the number
of formulations manufactured by the
Company and heving regard fo
the records and other books
maintained, it is nol possible
to apportion the consumption
of wilities unit wise al his stage.

e) Efforts made in technology absorption. Please refer Form B hereundar.

FORM B
[See Rule 2]

Form for disclosure of particulars with respect io Technology Absorption:

Research and Development [R&D),

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried
out by the Company.

2, Benelils derived as a resull of the above R&D

3. Future plan of action
4, Expenditure on R & D

a) Capital [% in Lacs]

b) Recurring [ in ‘Lacs]

¢) Total ¥ in ‘Lacs}

d) Total R&D expenditire as a
percentage of tolal turnover

Technology absorption, adapiation and innovation

1. Efforts in brief made towards technology
absorplion, adaptalion and innovation

2. Benefils devived ag a resull of the above
efforis e .g. product improvement, cost
reduction, product development, import
substitution, ete.

[

. Incase of imported technology  (imports
during the last § years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year)
followdng information may be furnished.
a) Technology imported
b) Year of Import
¢} Has technology been fully absorbed
d} I not fuily absorbed, areas where this

has not taken place, reasons therefore
and future plans of action.

Formulations:

Development of new formulations, new
dosage forms, substitution of imports by
indigenous materials, improvement in
process and stability of produets.

Launching of new products, increase
in shelfl life and reduction in costs.

Confinuous develcpment of new
formutations.

Previous Year
Nil
28
28

0.22%

Regular absorption of updated
technical information.

Improved processes and operating
elflciencies, cost reduction.

Not Applicable
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C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a) Activities relating {o exports, initialives
taken to increase exports, development
of new export markets for products ang
sarvices and export plans,

b) Total foreign exchange used Tin lacs)

Total foreign exchange earned (¥ in tacs)

Bengaluru
30th May 2018

I

—

ol

Continuous efforts are made to
increase exports and develop
new export markets.

Previous Year

170

797

On behalf of the Board

ABHAY KANORIA
Chairman & Managing Director

™
5



ANNEXURE 11 TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
Form No, MGT-8

EXTRACY OF ANNUAL RETURN as on the Financial Year ended on 31.3.2018

{Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1} of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Ruies, 2014j

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

iy CIN:

L24230KA1923PLCO10205

i) Registration Date:

01/02/1923

i) Name of the Company

Anglo-French Drugs & Industiies Lid.

iv) Category / Sub-Calegory of the Company:

Company having Share Capital

v) Address of the Regislerad office and contact detaits

No 41, 3rd Cross, V Block, Rajajinagar,
Bangalore —~ 560 010
Tel No.0B0-2315 6757, Fax No.080-23380953

vi) Whather listed company

Yes

Company's Securities are listed with Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of Indla, Mumbai, vide their letter No. MSE/LIST/
201818 dated 1st January 2018, we.f. 1st January 2018,

vil) Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Canbank Computer Services Limited,

J.P. Royale, 1st Floor, #218, 2nd Main
Sampige Road, Malleswaram,

Bangalore 560 003.Tel No.080-23469561/52

I PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or mare of the tolal turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Manufacturing of
Pharmaceulical Formulations

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIHARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

AND ADDRESS OF
THE COMPAN

CASSOCIATE

1 Anglo-French rugs & Industries Ple Lid,

2013 100%

Subsidiary
Singapore 0907512
2 Abhay Kanoria Family Trust NA Agsociate 80.37% 2{6}
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M, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as pe

i} Category-wise Share Holding

recentage of Total Eqguity)

A. Promoters
(1) Indian

a) Indivigual/i-1urE
b)Central Govt

¢) State Govt

d} Bodies Corp.
) Banks/ F}

) Any other

70174%

60,365

JGG0

701745

3650

701745

0.314

Sub-tofal (A) (1):«

701745

3650

60,679

705395

705395

(2) Forpign

a} NRlIs - Individuals
) Other — individuals
¢} Bodies Corp.
d)Banks/f

aiAany Other

0

0

0

Subtotal(A}2)

0

0

Total shareholding
of Promoter
(A) = (AN )+HAN2)

701745

705395

60.679

705395

705305

60.679

B, Public Shareholding
1.nstilutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / ¥l

¢) Ceniral Govt

d) State Govi(s)

¢) YentureCapitat funds
f} InsuranceCompanies
g} Flls

h) ForgignVeanture
Capital Funds

i} Others(specity)
Sub-total (B)i1}:-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Com,

i} Indian

iy Overseas

by Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nomina{ share
capitat upto Rs.2 fakhs
i) Individual shareholders
holding noming share
capital in excess of

Rs 2 lakhs

) Others (specify)
Resident Indigns HUF
NRI non repatriable

Sub-total (B)(2):«

Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B}(1)+ (B}(2)

210000

210000

58410

2620
425

116705

326708

126050

0
4
131350

130400

210000

210150

5955

fol

184360

2620
425

246955

457108

15,858

0.225
0.035

21,245

39.324

210000

214000

$6330

58320

2870
375

118195

328145

150

4300

124450

0
4

128760

128910

210000

210150

60630

183080

270
375

246355

457105

0.013

18.065

0.250
0,030

21.245

39.325

0.025
0.005

.00

€. Shares held hy Custedian
For GDRs & ADRs

il

il

Nif

Nil

il

it

Nil

Wil

Grand Total (A+B+C)

1027300

135200

1162500

100

1033590

128910

162500

160




Binod Kuntar Kanoria

2850
Binod Kumar Kanoria (HUF
200
Prabhadevi Kanoria
800

60O

Abhay Kanoia
Truslee 701745
Abhay Kanoria Family Trust

701745

Total 705395

705395

{iifChange in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify,

If there is no change)

At the beginning of the year 1.4.2047

Daie wise increase | Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
vear specifying The reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g.

allotment ftransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc);

Althe End of the yoar 31.3.2018

60.678
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and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

(iv}Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters

wenotl e Gompariy

At the beginning of the year 1.4,2017
1) | Life Insurance Comporation Of India 30000 7.74 0000 7.74
2) | Reliance Net Limited 47650 4.10 47650 4.1
3} | General lnsurance Corporation Of India 45000 3.87 45060 3.87
4) | National Insuratce Company |td 37500 3.23 37500 3.23
5) | The New |ndia Assurance Company Limiied 37500 3.23 37500 3.23
6} | Padmanabh Trading (P) Lid, 4200 0.36 4200 0.36
7) | Jyotsna Jitendra Desai 3950 0.34 34950 (.34
8) | Thaldkar Bina .} 3650 0.31 3650 0.31
9) | Trendsetter Investiments Pvl. L.td, 2350 0.20 2350 0.20

10} | Reliance Capital Fin Trust 2050 0.18 2050 0.18

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during

the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease - " - -

(e.g. allotment [ transfer / honus / sweat equity etg):

At the End of the year {or on the date of separation,

if separated during the year) 31.3.18
1) | Life insurance Corporation of lndia Q0000 7.74 0000 7.74
2} | Reliance Net Limited 47650 4.10 47650 4,10
3) | General Insurance Corporation of ndia 45000 3.87 45000 3.87
4) | National Insurance Company Lid 37500 3.23 37500 3.23
5) | The New India Assurance Company Limied 37500 3.23 37600 3.23
6) | Padmanabh Trading (F) Lid. 4200 0,36 4200 0.36
7) | Jyotsna Jitendra Desai 3950 0.34 3950 0.34
8) | Thakkar Bina J 3850 0.31 3650 0.31
9) | Trendsetter lnvesiments Pvi. Lid, 2350 0.20 2350 0.20

10} Reliance Capitat Fin Trust 2050 0.18 2050 0.18

{v}Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Gfibs company

At the beginning of the year 1.4.2017

1. Mr. UG, Palel 200 0.02 200 0.02
2. Mr. B. Subbarayalu 200 0.02 390 0.03
Date wiss Increase / Decrease in Share holding during

the year specilying the reasons for increase { decrease - -
{e.g. allolment/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity elc);

Atthe End of the vear 31.3.2018 - Mr. U.G. Pato] 200 0.62 200 0.02
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VU INDEBYEDNESS

(Z In Lakhs)

Indebtedness of the Campany including interest outstanding / accrued but nof due for payment

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

financial year - CCITL 1.4.17 TO 31.3.18

i) Principal Amount 1042 754 NIL. 269G
fijlnterest due bul not paid NIL 20 NI 20
ii)nterest acorued but not due 7 Nl NI 17
Total (i+ii+iii) 1959 774 2733
Change in indebtedness

during the financial year

«Addition 882 1341 NIL 2223
*Reduclion (339} (29) NIL (368)
Nef Change 543 1312 NIL 1855
Indebtedness atthe end of the financiaf year

i) Principal Amount 2502 2086 NIL 4588
ii) nterest dug but not paid NIL 65 NH. 65
ifi} interest accrued but not due 18 0 NIL 18
Total {i+ii+iii) 2520 2151 NIL 4871

VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

ARemuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors andior Manager: {(April 2017 to March 2313}

(¥ In Lakhs}

1. | Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisicns contained in section 171} of the 29.99 22.49 17.09 89.57
Income-~tax Act, 1961
{b)Value of perquisites ws 17(2)Income-tax Act, 1961 19.54 15.87 12.52 47,93
(o) Profits in liew of salary under section 17 {3) income tax Act, 1951 - - -
2. | Slock Option Nil il Nif Nif
3. | Sweat Equity il Nil Al il
4. | Commission - as % of profit - olhers, specify... - -
5. { Others, please specify - - - -
Total (A) 49,53 38.36 29.61 117.50
Celling as per the Act, per annum 84.00 84.00 84.00

{11}



Anglo-Lrench Drugs & Indusiries Limited

B.Remuneration to other directors:

1. 1 Independent Directors
Fee for  atlending beard commiltee meetings 50000 80000 50000 70000 250000
*Commission - - - - .
Olhers, please specify - - - ~ S
Totat {1} 50000 80000 50000 70000 250000

2. | Other Non-Executive Directors M Pauly Sukumar - - - -
Fee for atiending board commiliee meetings 60000 60000
*Commission - - - -
Cthers, please specify - - - - -
Total (2) 60000 - - - &0000
Total (B)=(1+2) 110000 80000 50000 70000 310000
Total Managerial Remuneration .- - - - -
Overall Ceiling as per the Act- Per meeting Rs.1 Lakh Rs.1 Lakh Rs.1 Lakh Rs.1 Lakh

C.Remuneration to key managerial personngl other than MIDYManager/WTD {April 17 to March 18)

(TIn Lakhs)

“ Koy Managerial Personiiel.

-m
1. | Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17{1) of the
Income-ax Acl, 1961 1375 52 1.39 16.66
(b}value of perquisites u's 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 4.87 0.00 0.36 5.23
{c)Profils in licu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1061 - - -
2. 1 Stock Option il Nil N Nii
Swoat Equily Nil il Wil Nil
4. | Commission Nil il Nl Nl
-as % of profit others, specify. .,
5. [ Others, please specify Nil Wil il N
Total 18.62 1,52 1.75 21.89
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Anglo-French Drugs & Endastries Limied

ANNEXURE 11 TO THE DIRECTORS REFPORT

FORM NO. AGC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section {3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered nto by the company with related parties referred to in sub
section (1) of seclion 188 of the Companizs Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto,

1. Detalis of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.
There were no contracis or arrangements or ransactions entered info during the year ended March 31, 2018, which were not ai
arm's length basis.

2. Details of contracts or arrangemenis or fransactions at Arm’s length basis,

1 | Name (s} of the related party

a. Sudarshan Services Lid.
& nature of relaticnship b, Shii, Abhay Kanoria/Mrs. Pallavi Kanoria

2 | Nature of contracls/ arrangements/ transaction | " a. Administralive Charges

b. Payment of monthly rent for the Flat located al Bangalore
leased to the Company

. Agreement renewed from 1.4.2016

. Agreemsnt renewed from 22.11.2017

- Administrative Charges Rs.2,58,127/~ per annum

3 | Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/ transaction
4 | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements

T o

@

or transaction including the value, if any
b.Rent- Rs. 9,768,677/~ per annum
Rs. 9,63,652 /- per annum

5 | Date of approval by the Board a. 30.05,2016
b 15.11.2015
& 1 Amount paid as edvances, if any il
On behalf of the Board
Bengaturu. - ABHAY KANQRIA
30th May 2018 Chairman & Managing Direclor




ANNEXURE 1V TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
FORM NO. MR-3

{Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.@ of the Companies (Appointment and remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014}

To,
The Members of
Anglo-French Diugs and Industries Limited
Bangalore-560010.
CIN:E24230KA1923PLCO10205

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good corporate
practices by Mfs. Anglo French Drugs and Industries Limited, (herein after referred to as “Cornpany’). Secretarial Audil was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate congucts/statutory compliances and
axpressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s bogks, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
company and alse the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct
of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in cur opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 31st March, 2018 complied with the stalutory provislons listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliange-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subjectto the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, Torms and returns filed and ofher records maintained by the Company for the
financial year ended on 31stMarch 2018 according to the provisions of:

{i) The Companias Act, 2013, (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder,
{if} The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {'SCRA}and the Rules made thereunder;
{iif} The Depositories Act, 1998 and the Regulations and By-laws framad thersunder;
(iv} Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Invesiment, Overseas Direcl lnvestment and External Commercial Borrowings ;
{v) The following Regulations and Guidslines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of IndiaAct, 1992 ('SEB) Act’);
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of Indig (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulasions, 2011
Not Applicable during the year
b The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
¢. The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue ofCapilaI and Disclosures Reqguirements) Regulations, 2008, -
Mot Applicable during the year
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Opiion Scheme and Employes Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999; - Not Applicable during the year
&. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {ssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
NotApplicable during the year
f. The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Registrars fo an Issue and Share Transfer Agenis) Regulalions, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client;
g. The Securlties and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - Not Applicable during the year;
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; - Not Applicable duri iy the year; and
. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, The
Company was listed on Metropsolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited effectively on January 4, 2018,
(vi) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952,
(vii}y Employees Slate Insurance Act, 1948

-
[15]




Anglo-Freneh Diwgs & Indusiries Limited

{viif} Environment ProlectionAc, 1985 and olher applicable environmental faws

(ix) Indian ContractAct, 1872

(x}  income TaxAct, 1961, Goods and Survice TaxAct, 2017 and other refated  laws
{xi} Paymertof BonusAct, 1965

(xli) Paymentof Gratuity Act, 1972 and such olher applicable labour laws,

Further, the sectoral laws applicable {o the company were as under:
{i) The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940
(if) The Narcotic Drugs and Psychotrapic Substances Act, 1885
(i) The Drugs Price Control Order, 2016
{iv) The Factories Acl, 1948

We have refied on the represenstation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the Cormpany for
compliances under other applicalile Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulaiions lo the Company. We have alse examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Irstifute of Company Secretaries of India to the extent applicable as on the date of my
audit;
(i) The Listing Agreement, Nolifications and circulars issued by the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited;

We further report that:

e The Beard of Directors of the Company is duly constitiled with proper composition of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Dirgclors. The changes in the composilion of the Board of Directors thal took place during the period
under review ware carried out in compiiance with the provisions of the Act.

e Adeguate nolice is given to all directors to schedule the Board and other Committee meetings. Agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications oni the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

e Decisions at the meelings of Board of Directors of the company are carried out based on majority, There were no dissenting views
by any member of the Board during the year under review,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report during the audit period, there was no specific event or action having major bearing on the company's affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, reguiations, guidelines, standards elc,

During the audit period, there were no instances of

(i) Public/Rights/Preferentialissue of shares/ debeniures/ sweat equily.

{il) Redernplion/buy back of securities.

(iii Merger/amalgamatien/reconstruction ete, For § Ravishaniaré A ot
T e ~Or swareop, Ravishankars Associates
(iv) Foreign technical collaborations. Company Secrotaries

Swaroop §

Partner

FOS. 8877 | CP. 9997
Bangalore

18.06.2018

E
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Amnexure-A to Forim MR-3

To,

The Members of

Anglo-French Drugs and Industries Limited
Bangatore - 560 010,
CIN: L24230KA1823PLC010205

Qurrepartcfeven date is 1o be read along with this lelter,

(®

(if}

{iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The Compliance of provisions of alf taws, rules, regulations, standards applicable to “the Company” is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the verification of records
and procedures on test check basis for the purpose ofissue of this Report,

Maintenance of secretarial and other records under the applicable laws is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibifity is to issue the Secretarial Audit Report, based on the relavant records
maintained and furnished to us by the Company, aleng with the explanations where so required,

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriale to obtain reasonable assurance about
the comrectness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial and other records. We believe that the process and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for the purpose of issue of this Report.

We have not verified the correctness and approprialeness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

Where ever required, we have oblained the Managemeni representation about the Compliance of laws, rules
and reguiations and happening of major evenls during the audit period.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Swaroop, Ravishankar& Associates
Company Secrelaries

Swaroop &

Partner

FCB. 8977 | CI. 9907
Bangalore
18.05.2018




Anglo-Frencih Brugs & Indusiries Limited

To
The Members
Anglo French Drugs & Industries Limited

Reportonthe Standalone ind AS inancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standaione Ind AS
financial statements of Anglo French Drugs & Industries Limited
("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory informationr: (herein after referred to as "standalone
IndAS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone nd AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these standaione
ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financiai performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for praventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for enstiring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free frommateriaf misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit, We
have taken into account the provisions ofthe Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are reguired o be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rufes made there under,

We conducted our avdit of the standalone Ind AS fiancial
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comnly with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance aboug
whether the standalone tnd AS financial staterments are free
frommaterial misstatement,

An zudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalong Ind AS financial statements, whether due fo fraud or
error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation
of the standalone ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order {o design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumsiances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonabieness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overali
presentation of the standalone IndAS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
oh the standalone Ind AS financiaf sfatements.

Opinion

In our cpinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true ang
fair view in conformity with the accounting principies generally
aceepted in India including the Ind AS, ofthe financial position of
the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its financiai
performance including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Other Matters

1. The closing inventory has not been verified by us as on 31st
March, 2018 & the same have been certified by the
management.

2. Trade receivable includes Rs.125.64 Lacs as on 31st March
2018 from Viva Remedies, which in the opinion of the
Company is good and recoverable from Viva Remedies.

3. The Company is in the process of taking Professional Tax
Registration for the States of Kerata and Tamil Nadu,

4. Adverse effect of increment of manufacturing cost and
reduction in overall sale volume resulting in operating loss
before tax amounting to Rs.1,288 Lacs incurred by the
company duiing the year(Refer fo Note 44 fo the financial
statements),

- Note 43 and 11 to the financial stalements where in the
company has stated no adjustment is necessary for
impairing the carrying cost of frade receivable amounting Rs
272 Lacs which is outstanding as on 31st March, 2018 from
100% subsidiary company "Anglo French Drugs & Industries
PTE. Limited, Singapore.

6. The comparative financial information of the Company for

the year ended March 31, 2017 and the fransition date

opening bajance sheet as at April 1, 2016 included in these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, are based on the
reviously issued staiutory financial statements prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards)

Ruies, 2008, audited by predecessor auditor and on which

predecessor auditor expressed an unmodified opinions in

i
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the reports for the year ended March 31 , 2017 and March 31,
2016 dated 10th August, 2017 and Stk August, 2018
respeclively, as adjusted for the differences in accounting
principies adopted by the Company on transition to the Ind
AS which have been audited by us.

Quropinion is not modified in respect of these matter,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,

2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
‘Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of oyur knowledge and belisf
were necessary for the purpose of our gudit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company sofar as it appears from our
examination ofthose books:

¢} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and L.oss, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financiai
statements comply with the Indian Accounting  Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 30th May, 2018

e) On the basis of the wrilten representations received from
the directors as on 31sf March, 2018 taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on
3stMarch, 2018 from being appointed as a dirsctor in terms
of Section 164(2) ofthe Act;

f With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate reportin "Annexure B" and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 201 7,
our opinion and to the best of our information and agcording
to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations against the Company on its finangial position
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements in respect
of claims and demands on the Company which are
being contested as menticned in Note 40,

fi. The Company did not have any long-erm contracts
Including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
fequired to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protaction Fund by the Company.

For KAMG & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FFirm's Registration No.311627E

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 180949




Anglo-French Dirugs & Industries Limited

ANNEXURE-A TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure-A referred to in our report fo the members of
Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited for the vear ended
March 31, 2618.

(b} According to the information and explanation given to
us, the following are the disputed statutory dues which
have not been deposited.

Woe report that:
i@y The Company has maintained proper records showing Service Tax demand amounting (o Rs.158 Lacs against
full particulars including  guantitative detalls and which appeal is pending before appropriate authority.

situations of fixed assets,

Amount Name of the

b} Accordiing to the information and explanation given 1o Period (Rs. In [Assessing Authority
ug, most of the fixed assets have been physically Lacs)
verified by the Management .ciunpg the year in a April 2006 to August 20081 82 CESTAT-Bengaluru
phased program and no materiat discrepancies were
noticed on such verflication.  In our opinion, the Sept 2008 to March 2009 34 {CESTAT-Bengaluru

frequency of such verification is reascnable having ; -
regard to the size of the company and the nature of its 2011-2012 fo 2013-2014 A2 | CESTAT-Bengaluru

assels. Total| 158

¢) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the

5 - . i e i
name of the company, Sales lax/Vat demands amounting to Rs.152 Lacs against

which the Company has preferred appeals,
fi.  Asexplained to us & on the basis of certificate given to us,

all the inventory of the Company has been physically Armount N .
o . L . ; Name of the
verified during the year by the management. in our opinicn Period | (Rs. in Assessing Authorily
and according to the information and explanations given fo lacs}
us, the frequency of the verification is reasonable having 2002-2663 1 JICCT-Appeals-Patia
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
husiness. 2004-2005 8 |JCCT-Appeals-Patna
fii.  According fo the information and explanation given to us, 20052006 3 |DCCT-Appeals-lucknow
the Company has r:e'lther_grant‘edl nor_tak.e_n any Ioans. {0 2006-2007 3 |JCCT-Appeals-Dhar Pithampur
and from the companies, firms, Bmited liability partnarships
or other parties as fisted in the register maintained under 20072008 6 JJCCT-Appeals-Dhar Pithampur

section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, " Ny o -
provisiens of Clause 3 (i) (b) & (¢} of the Order are not 200820091 44 [JOCT-Appeais-Dhar Pithamjpui

applicable to the Company. 2009-2010 15 [JCCT-Appeals-Dhar Pithampur

v, According o the informalion and axplanation given 1o us, 2010-2011 16 |ACCT-Mumbai & Pithampur
company has not given any loan fo directors as mentioned
in Seclion 185 and has not made any investments or given
any guaranlees & security as mentioned in Section 188. 2014-2015
Accordingly, provisions of Clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company. Total| 152

2011-2012 54 |ACCT-Mumbai
DCCT-Bengalury

N

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits during the
year and so the direclives igsued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provisions of sections 7% to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable.

viil. According to the information and explanations given o us,
the Company has not defaulied in repayment of loans or
korrowing to a financial institution, bank, Government or
dues fo debenturs holders.

ix. The company has not raised money by way of initial public
offer or further public offer (including deit instruments} and
term loans were applied for the purposes for which those
arg raised.

vi. The Central Government has prescribed for the
malntenance of the cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the procucts of the
Company and according to the information and
explanations given to us such accounts and records have X According to the information and explanations given to us,
been made and maintained, ne fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported

N . . . \ duringthe year.

vil. (a) According to the information and explanations gheyes

given lo us, the Con.;paﬂy is gelje.erally regui‘ar o, According to the information and explanations give to us
depositing with appropriate  aulhorities undisputed and based on our examination of the records of the

statutory dues innziuding Provident fgnd, ‘Employees Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial
Stat;e Insurance, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, remuneratior: in accordance with the requisite provisions
Excise Duty, Cess, Custom Duty and other statutory of section 197 read with Schedule Vio the Act,

dues applicable to it




xi. In our opinion and according ¢ the information and
explanations given to us, the Company s not a Nidhi
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order Is not
applicable.

All ransactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements etc., as required by the applicable
accounting standards,

il

(5

xiv. Tha company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year under roview,

xv. The company has not enlered into any non-cash
transaclions with directors or persons connected with him.

xvi. The companyis not required to be registered under seclion
45-1Aof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For KAMG & Associates
Firm's Registration No.3110278

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Pariner
Membership No.: 180949

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2018

.
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Anple-French Brugs & Industries Limited

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUBITORS' REPORT
REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (i)

OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES

We have audited the internal financial conirols over financial
reporting of  Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited {("the
Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on thatdate. '

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Gontrols

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining intemal financial controls based on the inlernal control
aver firancial reperting oriteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting isswed by the Instilule of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAY). These responsibililies include the
design, implementation and mainlenance of adeguate internal
financial contrais that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errars, the accuracy and
conpleteness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to EXpress an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit, We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Finaneial
Reporling (the “Guidance Note"} and the Standards on Audifing,
issued by 1CAl and deemed 1o be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 201 3, o the exient applicable to an
audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financiali Controls and, both issued by the lnslituls of
Chartered Acoountants of |ndia. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit lo obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internat financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such confrols
operated effectively in all material respects, Our audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over financial
feporling and their operating effectiveness, Cur audil of internal
financial controls over financiat reporting included obtaining an
undersianding of internal financial controls  over financial
reporling, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
infernal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors judgment, including  the
assessiment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial
staternents, whether due to fraud or error, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial
controls system over financial reporting,

Weaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

Acompany's intemat financial control over financial reporting is a

ACT, 2013 ("THE ACT")

process designed (o provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
slatements for external purposes in accordance wilh generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's intermal financial
control over financial reporting Includes  hose policies and
procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
provide reasonable assurance that transactions  are
recorded as necessary lo permil preparation of financial
statements in accordance wilh generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipis and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely delection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assels thal could have a
material effect on the financial statements,

(2)

(3)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Conirols Qver
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporling, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of corrtrols, material
misstalements due fo error or fraud may oecur and not he
detected, Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial confrols over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opirion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequale internal financial controls system over financial reporting
ard such inemal financial controls over financial reporing were
operating effectively as al 31st March 2018 except for the internal
conlrol system followed in the arcas of inventory management
such as periodical physical verification of stock and input output
reconciliation which effects the cost of production and seconily,
pending reconcifiation of Sales Tax / VAT, Excise Duty, Service Tax
and other indirect taxes of pre GST period which are outstanding
as on 31st March, 2018, based on the internal control over
financiai reporting criteria established by the GCompany
censidering the essential components of fternal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Qver
Financial Reporting  issued by the instilute of Chartered
Accountanis of India.

For KAMG & Associates
Firm's Registration No.3110271

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Fartnar
Membership No.: 180949

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30th May, 2018
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2018 {STANDAIONE) (% Inlacs)
. As at As at
Particulars | Note 31st March 2017 1st Aprit 2016
1 T e A AR e mersma

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 1,738 1,838
intangible Assets 5 4 3
Financial Assets
(i} tnvestments [ 17 i0
{ii) Trade Receivables 7 - -
{iii) other Non-current Financial Assets 8 159 89
Other Non-current Assets 9 17 53
Total Non-Current Assets 1,935 1,993
Current Assets
Inveniories 1C 3,560 1,878
Firancial Assets
(i} Trade Receivabies 1 2,899 2,876
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalenis 12 13 23
(iii) other bank balances 13 41 75
(iv) Other current Financial Assets 14 61 G6
Current Tax Asset (NET) 15 83 62
Other Current Asset 16 799 804
Total Current Assets 7.556 5,789
Total Assets 9,491 7,782
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily Share Capital 17 116 116
GCther Equity 18 1,575 1,560
Total Equity 1,691 1,676
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Firancial Liabilities
(iy Borrowings 1g 140 97
(i) Other Non-Current Financial Liabiiities 20 31 321
Employee Benefit Obligations 29 48 41
Deferred Tax Liabilities - NET 22 167 163
Total Non-Current Liabilities 666 6§22
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 23 2,583 2,122
(i} Trade Payables 24 3,004 2,178
(ifiy Other Current Financia! Liabilities 25 842 586
Other Current Liabitities 26 G659 591
Employee Benefit Obligations 21 : 46 7
Total Current Liabilities 8,863: 7,134 5,484
Total Equity and Liabilities 10,700 9,491 7,782

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheat referred to in our report of even date.
For KAMG & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

FFirm Regisfration Number 3110278

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner

Membership Numbar 180949 Chief Financial o
Mutbai, 30th May, 2018 tef Financial Officer

E

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Jagnani N. Ahmedali Abhay Kanoria
Director Chairman & Managing Director




Anglo-French Drugs & Endustries Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018 (STANDALONE) {¥ Inlacs)

; N Year ended

Particulars Notes 345 March 2017
INCOME
Revenue From Operations 27 12,839
Other Income 28 48
Total income A
Expenses :
Cost of Materials Consumed 29 3,657
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 2,888
Changes in inventories of Finished
Goods, Work-in Progress and Stock-in Trade 30 (551)
Employee Benefits Expense 3 2,391
Finance Costs 32 331
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 33 197
Cther expenses 34 3,940

Tofal Expenses

Profit i{L.oss) Before Exceptional ltems and Tax
Exceptional tems - Profit /{Loss)

Profit /{Loss) before Tax

Tax Expense
Current Tax 35
Deferred Tax 35

Profit /{Loss) For The Year

OTHER COMPREMENSIVE INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or toss

- Remeasurement of Post-employment benefit obligations

- Change in equity instrument-Fair value through other
Comprehensive income

- Tax relating 1o these items

Currenit Tax

Deferred Tax

Total other Comprehensive Incomel(Loss) for the year,
net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings per equity share (in INR) (Face value INR 10}

{1} Basic 46
(2) Diluted 48

12,863
34

[

34

2.24
2.24

The accompanying notes form an irtegral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss raferred to in our report of even date,
For KAMG & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 3110275

Arpit Parasmal Shah

Partner
Membe_rship Number 180949 Manish Jagnani
Mumbai, 30lh May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ahmedali
Cirector

Abhay Kanoria
Chairman & Managing Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2018 (STANDALONE)

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at April 1, 2016 16
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at March 31, 2017 116
Changes in equity share capital during the year .
Ag at March 31, 2018 16

B. OTHER EQUITY

Reserves and Surpius

Capital | Securities| General | Retained Other
Reserve | premium | Reserve earnings | Gomprehensive | Total

reserve (Surplus) income
Balance at April 1,2016 43 70 548 898 - 1,560
Profit for the year i B B 295 ) 26
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax i - B (19) 8 (t1)
Total comprehensive income for the year ) - ) 7 8 15
Balance as at March 31,2017 43 70 549 905 8 1,575
Balance as at April 1,2017 43 70 549 905 8 1,675
Prefit for the year - - - (1.121) - (1,121)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - 20 () 16
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - {1,101) 4) {1,105)
Balance as at March 31,2018 43 70 549 (196) 4 470

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financiai Statements

This is the statement of changes in equity referred in our report of even date,

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 311027¢

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Pariner

e o WManish Jagnani
Membership Number 180949 Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai, 30th May, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ahmedali

Director

Abhay Kanoria

Chairman & Managing Director




Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE FOR PERIOD ENDED 31st MARCH 2018 (STANDALONE) (% inlacs)
Year ended
Jist March 2017
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before income Tax 34
Adjustment for
Depreciations and amortisation expense 197
{BainyLoss on disposal of property, plant and equipment -
Provigions Written Back {17)
Interest income classified as investing cash flows (1)
Finance costs 331
Change in operating assets and labalities

{Increase) / Decrease in trade receivahles {123)

(Increase} / Decrease in inventories (1682)

{Increase) / Decrease in other financial assets (65)

(Increase) / Decrease in other non-current assets (12}

(Increase) / Decrease in other current assets 10

Increase / (Decrease} in trade payables 842

increase / (Decrease) in employee benefit chligations 25

Increase / (Decrease) in ofher financial liabalities 332

increase / (Decrease) in other current liabalities 68
Cash Generated from Operations (71)
Income faxes paid (net of refund) {23)

Net Cash in flow from operating activities (94)

Cash flows from investing activitics

Payment for property, plant and equipment (109)

Preceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3

Change in other bank balances 34

Interest received 12

Net Cash outflow from Investing activities sy
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings:

Term Loan 95

Cash Credit (net) 81

Others 380
Repayment of borrowings:

Term Loan {58)

Car Loan (23)
Iinterest Paid (337
Dividends paid -

Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 144
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (10)
Cash and cash equivalent at the begining of the year 23
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year  piaadieggaicaaoany T 1 B

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financlai Statements
This is the statement of Cash Flows re

For KAMG 8 ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 3110271

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner

Membership Number 180949
Mumbai, 30th May, 2018

Manish Jagnani

ferred to in our report of even date.

Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ahmedali Abhay Kanoria

Chairman & Managing Director
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ANGLO FRENCH DRUGS & INDUSTRIES LTD
NOTES TOACCOUNTS (Standalone)
GENERAL INFORNMATION:

Anglo French Drugs & Indusires Limited (“the company”) is a
company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India
having its Registered Office at Bengaluru. The company is
primarily engaged in manufacturing of pharmaceutical
Tormulations. As per letter® no MSE/ LIST/ 2018 / 18 dated
January 1, 2018 issued by the Metropolitan Stock Exchange,
Equity shares of the Company are listed and admitted to dealings
en the Exchange w.e.f. January 4, 2018 vide notice number
MSELIST/E03/2018 dated January 1, 2018.

1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparalion of these separate financial
statements of the company. These policies have been
consistenlly applied to all the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated.

{2) BASIS OF PREPARATION
(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The separale financiai statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015 as a going concern on an accrual basis, The
(inancial statements up 1o year ended 31 March 2017 were
prepared earfier in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 (as amended) and other refevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are the firsl financial statements of
the company under Ind AS and the transition was carried out in
accordance with Ind AS 101, "First fime adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards. Refer Nete 48 for an explanation of how
the transilion from previous GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected the
company's financial position, financial performance and cash
flows,

(it} Historical cost convention

The Financial statements have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for the following:
- equity investments in entities other than subsidiary, joint
ventures and associate which are measured at fair value;
- Certain financial assets and liahilities that are measured at
fairvalue;
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value,

(i) Use of estimates

in preparing the financial statements in conformity with generally
accepled accounting principles, management is required 1o
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that may affect
the reported amounts of assels and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets & labilities as al the date of financial
statenents and the amounis of revenue and expenses during
the reported period. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying financial staiements are based upon
imanagement's evaluafion of facis and circumstances as at the
date of the financial statement. Actual resuits could differ Trom
those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumption are
reviewed on an ongoing basis, Any revision to such estimates is
recognizedin the period the sameis determined.

(b) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historicad cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
Historical Cost represents direct expenses ncured on
acquisition of the assets and the share of indirect expenses
refating to acquisition alfocated In proportion to the direct cost
volved, Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when itis probable that future economic benefits associated with
the itern will flow 16 the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separale asset is devecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

Ontransition {0 Ind AS, the company has electad lo continue with
the carrying value of alt of its properly, plant and cquipment
recognized as at 1 Aprit 2016 measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemad cost of the
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual
value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on
“Straight Line Method’ based on useful life as prescribed under
Schedule il of the Companies Act 2013, The residual values are
not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, ptant and equipment
Is derecognized on disposal or when no future benefits are
expected fromits use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposals
are delermined by comparing proceeds with carrying amouni.
These are included in profit or loss within ofher gaing / (fosses).

(¢) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible Assets are staled at acquisiion cost, net of
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment (osses,
if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a slraight line basis
over thelr actual useful lives or uplo 6 years whichever is lower,
The amertisation period and the amorlsation method are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected
useful Hfe of the asset is significantly different from pravious
eslimales, the amortisalion period is changed accordingly,

The cost of an intangible asset comprises of ifs purchase price
including any import duties and other taxes (olher (han those
subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities) and any
directly altributable expenditure on making the asset ready forits
intended use. Expenditure on development efigible for
capitalisation are carted as 'intangibie assels under
deveiopment' when such assets are not vet ready for the
intended use.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Sulsequent Expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable hat
the future economic benefils associated with the expendilure wil
flow to the Company.
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Transition to Ind AS:

Upen first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected fo
apply deemed cosl exemption for all of its intangible assels as al
the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. April 0%, 2018, Accordingly, the
Company has continued with the carrying vadue under Previous
GAAP for alf of its intangible assets recoghized in the financial
statements as atthe date of ransition to Ind AS.

Derecagnition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expecied from
its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirsment or
disposal of an intangible asset are delermined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and recognized as income or expense in the Stalement
of Profitand Loss.

() FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Atinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of ene entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity,

(i} FINANCIALASSETS:
{A) Classification:

The Company shall classiy financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair vahie through  other
comprehensive income (FYOCH) or fair vaiue through profit or
loss (FVTPLYon the basis of its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characieristics of
the financial asset,

(B) Initial recognition and measurement;

Afinancial assetis classified as measured at

-Amortised Cost,

«FVOCH-debtinstruments;

-FVOC!-equity investment; or - FVTPL
Allfinancial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, inthe
case offinancial assets notrecorded at FVYTPL, fransaction costs
thal are attributable to the acquisition of the financlal asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a fime frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits {o purchase or sell the asset,

Debtinstruments:

A'debtinstrument' is measured at the amortised cost if Hoth the
following conditions are met:

a) Theassetis held wilhin a business mode! whose objective is
to hold assets for collecling contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractualterms of the asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(BPPon the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial asseis are
subsequenlly measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EiR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
ini¢ account any discount or premium and fees or costs ihat are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profitor loss.

Debt instruments included within the fair vaiue through profit and
loss (FVTPL) category are measured at Tair value with all
changes recognized inthe statement of profitand loss.

Equity investment:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investmants in
companies other than equity fnvestmentis in subsidiary at fair
vajue. Where the Company's management has clected Lo
present fair vatue gains and losses on equity investments in
other comprehengive income or FVTPL. The Company makes
such election on an instrament by instrument basis. Dividends
from such investments are recognized in profit o loss as other
income when the Company’s right to receive payments is
established,

(C) Derecognitions

Adinancial assel {or, where applicable, & part of a financial asset
or part of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e.
removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when the rights to
receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company
has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay 10 a third parly under a ‘pass-through'
arangement; and elther (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates' i and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially afl of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred assel 1o the extent of the Company's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Company alsc
recognises an associated Hability, The fransferred asset and the
associated liabilty are measured on a basis that reflecls the
rights and obligations thai the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required torepay,

(D} Impairment:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected
credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the foflowing financial assels and credit risk
EXpPOsuUre:

(2} Financial asssts thal are debit investments, and are
meastred at amortised cosl e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance,  ease receivalies

(b) Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significans financing
component.

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 37 detalls how
the company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in cradit risk,

FFor frade receivables only, the company appliss the simplified
approach permilled by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial
recoghition of the receivables.
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(i} FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
(A} Classification:

The Company classifies all financial liabiliies as subsequently
measurad at amertised cost, except for financial Kabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives
thal are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

{B) Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financtal liabifittes al fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an elffective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial fiahilities are recognized initially al fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payabies, nel of directly
attributabic transaction costs.

{C) Derecognition:

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial fiability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially madified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new labitity. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts s recognized in the statemant of profitor foss,

{iil) OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT:

Financiat assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheei where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intgntion to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and seltle
the liability simultaneously. The fegally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insclvency
or bankrupley of the Company orthe counterparly,

(iv) INCOME RECOGNITION:

Interest income from debt instiuments is recognized using the
effeclive interest rate method. The effective interest rats is the
rate thal exaclly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of a financiel asset. When caleulating the
effective interest rate, the company esimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contraclual terms of the financiat
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
oplions} butdoes not consider the expected crediliosses.

{¢) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow
Statement comprise cash and chegues in hand, bank balances,
demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three
months or less and olher shoit term highly liquid investments. To
be classified as cash and cash eguivalents, the financial asset
must:

~bareadily convertible into cash;

- have an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue; and

-have a maturity period of three months or less at

acquisition,

Bank ovardrafts are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of an entity's cash management, and are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents, Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheel.

(P REVENUE RECOGNITION
(A} Sale of goods:

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been ransferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible
return of goods can be estimated refiably, there is no continuing
management involvement with the goods and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably,

Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise duty and is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivabie, net of returns, sales lax and appficable trade
discounts and atlowances, chargebacks and rebates. Revenue
includes shipping and handiing costs hilled to the cuslomers. The
liming of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on
the individual terms of the sales agreements.

{B) Exportincentive

Gutly drawback is recognized at the time of exports and the
benefils in respect of advance license received by the Company
against export made by itare recognized as and when goods are
imported against fhem.

(C)Interestincome

Revenue from interest is recognized on accrual basis and
determined by contracival rate of interest.

(D) Dividend Income

Pividend income Is stated at gross and is recognized when right
lo receive paymentis established,

(9) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The company has various schemes of retirement benefits such
as Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Gratuity Fund duly
recognized.

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabflittes for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be seftled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the
refated service are recognized in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expecled o be paid when the liabilities are settled, The
fiabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations
inthe balance shest.

The employees of the company are entitled to leave benefils as
per the policy of the Company. They are therefore measured as
the present value of expecled future paymenis to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporling period using the projected unit credit method, The
benefits are discounted using the market yvields at the end of the
reporting period that have terms approximating {o the terms of
the related obligation. Re-measuremenis as a result of
experience adjustments and changss in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in other comprehensive incoma.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance
sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expested to ocour,

(i) Post-employment obligations

The company operates the following post-employment
schemes:
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Gratuity Obligations -

Maintained as a defined benefit retirement plan and contribution
is made to Gratuity Fund established as Trust maintained by the
company. The liabiity or asset recognized i the batance sheet in
respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of
ihe defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assels. The defined benafit obligation is
calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit
method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined
by discounting the estlimated future cash outflows hy reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the tarms of the related
obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the nel balance of the defined benefl obligation
and the falr value of plan assets. This cost is Included in
employes benefit expense in the statement of profitand loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions  are
recognized in the period in which they oceur, directly In other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings
in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund »

The company pays provident fund confributions to a fund
administered by Government Provident Fund Authority, The
Company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are acocounted
for as defined contribution plans and the coniributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Frepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
avaftable,

Superannuation Fund -

With respect to Superannuation Fund, which is maintained for
tew employeesis contributed Life Insurance Corporation of India
under LIC Superannuation Policy

(h} LEASES

leases in which a significant porlion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as aperating
leases. Lease paymants underleases are charged or credited fo
the Staternent of Profit and Loss on a straight-fine basis over the
term of the lease unless the lsase payments to the lessor are
slructured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expected infationary costincreases,
inwhich case the same are recognized as an expense in line with
the contractual term,

{i) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(i} Presentation Cusrency

These financial statements are presented in INR which is the
Functional Currency of the Company,

(i) Transactions and balances

The foreign currency balances receivable/payable as at the year
end are converted at the closing rate and exchange difference
has been recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss. The
company ctassifies all its foreign operations as integral in nature.

Payments made In foreign ourrency inchuding for acquirin
investments are converted at the applicabie rate
the date of remitiance.

JTAXES ONINCOME
Currentincome tax is recognized based on the amount axpected
{0 be paid lo the tax authorities, using tax rates and tax laws that

have been enacled or substantially enacted on the date of
balance sheet.

G
prevalling on

Deferred ihcome fax is provided using the fability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax basss of assets
and fabilities and their carrying amounts in the separate financial
siatements. Deferred tax assets are recognized for 2l deductible
temporary differences and unused fax fosses only ifitis probable
that future taxable amounts will be available (o utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

If the Company has carry forward unabsorbed depreciation and
tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent there is virtual certainly supported by convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be reafised.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and fiabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authorily. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offsot where
the entily has a legally enforceable right to offset and intendgs
either to settle on a netbasis, or to realise the assel and setile the
liahility simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profitor loss, except o
the extent thal it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the taxis
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respeclively,

(%) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earmings per share is computed using the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding daring the period,
Diluted earnings per share is compuied using the weighted
average number of shares and dilutive equity equivalent shares
outstanding during the period, except when results will be anti-
dilutive,

(1) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
CONTINGENTASSETS

A provision is recognized if, as a resull of a past eveni, the
Cormpany has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably,
and it is probable that an oulflow of economic benefits will e
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognized al the
best estimate of the expenditure reguired 1o settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are
measured on an undiscounted basls,

Provision in respect of foss contingencies relating to dlaims,
litigation, assessment, fines, penatties, ele. are recognized when
itis probabie that a liability has been incurred and the amount can
be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not
probable obligation, or a present obiigation (hat may, buf
probably will not, require an oulflow of TeSOUrces, or a present
sbligation whose amount cannol be estimated raliabiy,
Contingent liabititlies do not  warrant provisions, but are
disclosed, unless the possibifity of outflow of resources s
remota.
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Contingent assets are nelther recognized nor disclosed in the
financial slatements. However, contingent assels are assessed
conlinually and if it is virfually certain that an infiow of economic
benefils wiff arise, the asset and related ingome are recoghized
inthe period in which the change oceurs,

(M)} SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segmeants are repor{ed in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief aperating decision maker.

{n}RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Development of expenditure of certain nature is capitalised when
the criteria for recognising an intangible asset are met. The
revenue expendilure on Research & Devetopment is written off in
the year inwhich itis accrued.

{0} INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (Weighled averages
basis) and the net' realisable value aftor providing for
obstlescence and other losses, where considered necessary.
Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of
sale, Including octroi and other levies, transit insurance and
recelving charges. Work-in-progress and finished goods include
appropriate proportion of overheads.

(P} GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES

Government Inceniives thal the Company is entilled to on
fulfillment of oartain conditions, but are availahle to the comparny
only on completion of some other condilions, are recognized as
income at fair value on completion of such other cenditions

Incentives that the company is entitled to uncenditionally on
fulfiiment of certain conditions, such incentives are recognized
al fair value as income when there is reasonable assurance that
the incentives will be received.

2. New standards / amendments that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rufes, 2018 (the
Rules'y on 28th March, 2018. The rules shall be effective from
reporting periods beginning on or afler tstAprii, 2018 and cannot
be early adopied.

(&) Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On
March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"Y has
notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue fram Conltract with, Custormers,
The core priticiple of the new standard is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the ransfer of promised goods or
services (o customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration o which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Further the new standard
requires enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers. ‘

The standard permits two possibie methods oftransition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the standard WHI
be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period
presented in accordance with Ind AS 8- Accounting Policies,
Changes inAccounting Estimates and Errors

Retrospectively With cumulative effect of initiafly applying the
standard recognized at the date of inflial application (Cumulative
cateh - up approach) - The effective date for adoption of Ind AS
115 isfinancial periods beginning on orafterAprii 1, 2018,

The Company wilf adopt the standard on Apill 1, 2018 by using
the cumulative cafch-up transition method and accordingly
comparatives for the year ending or ended March 31, 2018 will
not be retrospectively adjusted. The Company is in the process
of assessing the detailed impactof Ind AS 115,

(b) Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency fransactions and
advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™ hag
notified the Companies (indian Accounting  Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21,
Foreign currency ransactions and advance consideraticn which
clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange raie io use on initial recognition of the related
assel, expense or incoms, whern an entity has received or paid
advance considerationin aforeign currency.

The amendment will come nto force from April 1, 2018, The
Company has evaluated the eflect of this on the financia
statements and the impactis not material.

The Company intends to adopt amendments prospectively (o
items in scope of the appendix that are initially recognized on or
after the beginning of the reporting period in which the appendix
is first applied (Le. from [SIAprit, 2018)

{c) Amendments to Ind AS 40 Invesiment
investment property

property - Transfers of

The amendments clarify that fransfers to, or from, investment
property can only be made if there has been a change in use that
is supporled by evidence. A change in use occurs when the
property meets, or ceases to meet, the defination of investment
property. Achange in intension alone is not sufficient to supporla
transfer. The amendments provide {wo (ransition oplions.
Entities can choose to apply the amendment elther
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or prospectively to
changes in use that cceur on or afler the date of initial application,

The Company has assessed the effects of the amendment on
classification of existing property at st April, 2018 and
concluded thal no reclassifications are required.

The Company has decided to apply the amendmeni
prospeclively to changes in use that occur after the date of initial
application (L.e 1st April, 2018)

3. Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of financlal statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual resulis, Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated, They are
hased on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on
the company and that are believed t be reasonable undsr the
circumstances,

The following are the judgements and estimates that the
management have made in (he process of applying the
Company's accounting policies and thal have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized In the financial
slatements.

M impairment of trade receivable:

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are hased on
assumptions about risk of default and expedcied loss rates. The
Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and

o
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selecting the inputs to the impairment calouiation, based on the
Company's past history, exisling market conditions ag well as
forward looking estimates atthe end of each reporting period.

ii} Post-employment benefits:

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment
benefits are charged to the income stetement in accordanco with
Ind AS 18 ‘Employee benefits’ over the period during which
benefit is derived from the employess’ services. The costs are
assessed on the basis of assumplions sclecled by the
management. These assumptions include future earnings and
pension increases, discount raies, expecled long-term rates of
return on assets and mortality rates.

iii} Sales returns and rehates:

Revenue is recognized when tifie and risk of logs is passed lothe
customer, reliable estimates can be made of relevant and afl
refevant obligations have been fulfilled, such that the aarmings
process is regarded as being completed

-
&3

Gross turnover is reduced by rebates, discounts, allowances and
product returns given or expected o be given, which vary by
product arrangements and buying groups. These arrangements
with  purchasing organisations are dependent upon {he
submission of ciaims some time after the initiaf recognition of the
sale,

Because the amounts are estimated they may notfully reflect tha
{inat outcome, and the amounts are subjectto change dependent
upon, amongst other things, the types of buying group and
product sales mix,

Fultre events couid cause the assumplions on which the
acerials are based fo change, which could affect the future
results of the Company.

W) Assumptions are also made by the management with respect
to valuation of inventories, evaluation of recoverability of
deferred tax and contingencies.

k
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Noles 1o Accounts - Conid.

4, Property, Plant and BEquipment

alanceasal:
Warch 3120971 At

Freehold land
Buildings
Plant & equipmant
Furniture & fittings
Vehicles

Office equipment
Compuiters

8
778
644
130
160

34
180

32
45
22
26
11
57

32
45
22
28
il
57

TOTAL

1,934

196

196

Chcclimilaled Depretiation

4 2
March 31 20181 =

Freehold land
Buiidings

Plant & equipment
Furniture & fittings
Vehicles

Office equipment
Computers

8
782
653
135
152

34
189

92

TOTAL

1,953

373

5, Intangible Assets

alance a5 &
arch 31 K 2_(_)1_7

Trademarks
Computer Soflware

R

TQTAL

(]

M_*.*.':Q'! 31,2018 hsat

Trademarks
Computer Software

TOTAL

j oo
125
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Notes to Accounts - Conld.

{2 inlacs}

8 Noa-Current invesiments
A Investments in equity instruments {fully paid)
(1) Quoted -
in other-entities (Equity investments at Fair value through ather
comprehensive income)
5,760 (2017 & 2016-5,760) Equily shares of INR 10 each in industrial 4 4 4
Development Bank of India Limited ) N
19,400 (2017 8 2016 - 19,400) Equity shares of INR 10 each in Vijaya Bank 10 13 G
{il) Unquoted -
In Subsidiary Companies (Equity investments at cost)
96,600 (2017 & 2016-50,000) Equity shares in Angio French Drugs & Indusiries 24 24 24
Fte Lid. Singapore. wholly owneg Subsidiary,
Less: Provision for diminution in the vaiue of investment (Refer Note 43) (24} (24) (24}
Total Investment in equity instruments 14 17 10
Total non-current investments 14 17 10
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 14 17 10
Market value of quoted investmenis 14 17 10
Aggregate amount of unguoted investmenis 24 24 24
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment (24) (24) {24)
7 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Doubtful
Receivables from related parlies
Receivables other than from related parties 126 129 129
l.ess: Provision for doubtful debts 126 128 129
Total rade recivables {non-current) - - -
& OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security deposits a1 101 73
Fixed deposits with bank (with malwity pericd of more than 12 months) 8 58 16
Total other non-current financial assets 99 159 89
9 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital advances - - 48
Deferred rent expense for security deposii assets 25 15 3
Other deposits 3 2 2
Total other non-current assets 28 17 53
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{ T in lacs)

10 INVENTORIES

Raw materials 1,442 1,213 673
Packing materials 370 33 268
Work-in-progress 172 108 89
Finished goods*™ 1,453 1,379 847
Stores and spare parts * 628 529 228
Less: Provision for inventories - - 227
Total Inventorics 4,665 3,560 1,878

*includes Slock of samples and promolional items it the Rands of sales
representatives Rs. 82 |Lacs

"Closing slock of Finished goods includes samples amounting to Rs. 58 Lacs,
which are not meant for sale.

Raw materials & Packing materials are valued at weighted Average method,
WIP & Finished Goods at Standard Price and stores and spares ai cosl,

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, considered good

receivable from related parties (Refer Note 43) ’ 272 200 136
Recegivable from other than related parties 2,707 2,798 2,740
Total trade receivables {current) 2,979 2,999 2,876

12 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks

- Current Accounts 165 12 20

Cash i hand 5 1 3

Stamps in hand - - -

Total cash and cash equivalents 168 13 23
13 QTHER BANK BALANCES

Fixed deposits maturing within 312 monihs 72 41 78

Total otiver bank balances 72 41 5
14 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security Deposits

Related Party 13 13 13
Security Deposits 59 48 53

Total other current financial assets 72 61 66
15 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

Opening balance 64 83 45

Less: Tax payable for the year - 2 17

Ass: Taxes pald 1 5 2

Add/ (Less): Refund / adjustment for earlier years n ] (%)

Closing balance 65 64 27

MAT credit entitlement 149 19 35

Total current tax assefs (net) 84 83 62
16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Frepaid expenses 159 164 94

Deferred rent expense on security deposit given 8 7 5

Other advances 1,369 808 740

Total other current assets 1,536 799 809

jialy
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Notes lo Accounts - Conld,

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL {¥ in lacs)
Asat i

AUTHORISED
2,000,000 Equity Shares of iNIR 10 each 200 200 200
{2017 & 20185 - 2,000,000}

200 200 200

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID
1,162,500 Equily Shares of INKR 10 each 116 16 116
{2017 & 2016-1,162,500)

of the ahove 704,000 Equity Shares are issued by way of Bonus
Shares by capitalisation of Generat Reserve

116 16 116 *J

(i} Recongiiiation of equity share capital

As at April 1, 2016 1,162,500 116

Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2017 1,162,500 116
Change during the year . .
As at March 31, 2018 1,162,500 116

(i) Rights and preferences attached fo etuity shares:

The company is having only one class of equity shares carrying a nominal vatue of INR 10 per Share. These shares rank pari passu
in all respects including voting rights and entitlemant to dividend. Every holder of the equily shares of the Company is entitled %0 one
vole per share held in the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders will be entitied to receive remaining assets of

the Company after the distribution / repayment of all creditors. The distribution to the equity shareholders will be in proportion of the
number of shares held by each shareholder.

(i} Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 percent shares in the Company :
e A As at31stMarch 2018
u%_xi_'_ {: ;

“As at:31sEMarch 2076
e

1) Abhay Kanoria Family Trust 701,745 30.08
represented by Mr. Abhay Kanoria
2) Bt Pallavi Kanoria - 351,970 30.28

3} Life Insurance Corporation of india 90,000 7.74 90,000 7.74 80,000 7.74

18. OTHER EQUiTY

{TIn Lakhs)

(a) RESERVES AND SUR

PLUS
Capital Reserve 43 43 43
Secunities Premium Reserve 70 70 70
General Reserve B4g 549 549
Surplus 7 {Deficit) in Statement of Profil and Loss (196) 905 894
466 1.567 1,560
(b) OTHER RESERVES .
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive income - Equity Instrument 4 8
Total Other equity 470 1,575 1,560 N

P
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() RESERVES AND SURPLUS
{1} CAPITAL RESERVE

Cpening Balance 43 43
Adjustment during the year
Ciosing Badance 43 43

{it) SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE
Opening Balance 70 70
Adjustiment during the year

Closing Balance 70 70

{iti) GENERAL RESERVE
Gpening Balance 549 564G
Adiustment during Ihe year

Closing Balance 549 548

(Iv) SURPLUS / {DEFICIT) IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT AKD 1LOSS

Opering Dalance 805 filth]
Add. Profit (Loss) during the year as per Stafement of Profit & Loss (1,121} 26
Other comprehensive income recognised direclly in retained eamings

Remeaswrements of pest-employment, benefit obligation net of tax 20 {19}
Closing Balance (196) 805

{b) OTHER RESERVE
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

OCpening Balance 3 -
Adjustments during the year

= Remeasurments of Quoted equily shares (4} 8
Closing Balance 4 8

Nature and purpose of Resarves

(i) Capital Reserve
Capital Reserve represents the statutory reserve oreated by the company as per requirement of the Act. The same can be utilised by the
company for issuing fully pald bonus shares.

(it} Securities premium reserve
Socurilies premium reserve is used Lo record the premium on lssue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in accordance with the provigions of the
companies Act,

(iii) General Reserve
General Reserve ropresents the statulory reserve, this is in accordance with Indian Corporale law wherein a porlion of profit is apportioned in
general reserve, Under Companies Act, 2013 transfer of any amount to Generat reserve is at the discretion of the Company.

{ZIn Lakhs)

18 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Term Leoans from Banks

Secured
HDFC - - 27
YES Bank 97 u5 -
Car finance loans from banks 23 45 0
Term Loans from Other (NBFC)
JM Financial Products Limitad 774
Total Non - current borrowings 894 144 47
Current matutities of long-term debt (Included in note 25) 157 i 108
Current matwrities of car finance foan {included in note 25) 19 24 22
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Noles 1o Accounts - Contd.

PARTICULARS QF TERM BORRQWINGS -

a} Securily:

L. The Company has mortagaged its land al Pecnya and first charge on Plant & Machinery of the Company on the term
loan taken from YES Bank.

ii. Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

iii. Term loan from JM Financial Products Limiled is secured al firts raniing & exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgage
on residential properly of Sudarsha Services [td.

b} Terms of repayment and Interest rate ;

i. The Company has taken term loan from 'YES' Bank which carry interest at the rala of 10.20%, repayable in 37 equal instaliments.
Repayment of the term luan will be completed in February 2020,

fi. In respect of Vehicle loans repayments are done by equated monthly instaflments over 36 to 60 monihs,

{fl. Term Loan from JM Financial Products Limited caries interest at the rata of 10,00%, repayable in 120 equal menthly installments, Repayment
wili be cormpleled in March 2028.

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
Security deposits 208 307 317
Other liabilities 4 4 4
Total ather non-current financial fiabilities 300 311 31

21. Employee benefit abligations (T inlacs)

ASBUMGrch a1, 2018 o AsatAPH 2076,

-‘C‘L.gr.rc-:_n@_ Mo :Gurrent’: :

Leave Encashiment -~ Unfunded

Present value of obligation 15 By 72 14 48 82 13 41 54
Gratuity - Funded

Present value of obligation 241 241 251 - 261 192 - 192
Fair valua of plan assets 201 201 219 - 219 198 - 168
Net Liabifity 40 40 32 - 3z (6) - (8)
Total employee benofit obligations 855 57 T2 46 48 G4 7 41 48

{i) Defined benefit plans

a) Grataity

The company provides for gratuily for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratdity Act, 1972, Gratuily plan is a funded plan
and the Company makes contributions 1o Kotak Gratuity Group Rlan (UNI-107Lo10V05).

b} Leave Brncashment:

As per the policy of the company, obligations on account of encashiment of accumuated leave of an employee is seltled only on
lermination / retirement of the employee. Such liability is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation following Project Unit Credil
Meihod. IUis an unfunded plan. The cormpany does not have an uncondilional tight to defor setilement for any of lhese oldligations.
Howaever, Dased on past experience, the company does not expect @l employees to take the full amount of accrued leave or require
Payment within the next 12 monihs.

(if) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contributions fowards provident fund which are in the nature of defined contribution ROst employment benefils
plans, Under the plan, the Company is required Lo contribule a speaified percentage of payroll cost (o fund the beneiils,

The Company has recognised the following amounts i the Stalement of Frofit & Loss for delined contribution plan.

(¥ in lacs)

Maich 31,2017

a) Supperannuation Fund 10 7

b) provident Fund L] 4z

{38
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(iif) Movement of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets :

The amounts recogniged in the balance sheel an the movements in the net defined henefil obligation over the year are as folfows:

(¥ In laes)

Aprit 1, 2016

Current sarvica cost 29 - 29 18
Interast expense ! (income) 14 14 - 3
Total amount recogiised In profit or loss 43 4 29 21
Remeasurements

Loss due to expericnce 21 - 21 4
Losgs due o change in financial assumptions 7 - 7 2
Raturn on plan assets (greateryless than discount - 14 {14} -
rate

Total amount recegnised in other 28 14 14 6
comprehensive Income

Employer contributions B 4 {5} -
Benefit payments {12) (12) - (19)
March 31, 2047 251 219 32 62
April 1, 2017 251 219 32 62
Current service cost 23 23 19
Interest expense/{lncome) 18 15 3 4
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 41 5 28 23
Remeasurments

Loss due to experience {15) - (15) (2)
Loss due 1o change in financial assumptions (3} - (3) {1)
Return on plan assets (grealer)flass than discount - - - -
rate

Total amount recognised in other (18) - {18} {3)
compirehensive iIncome

Employer contributions - - -

Benefit paymonts 33 33 - 10
March 31, 2018 241 201 40 T2

The net liability disclosed above reflates (o funded and urfunded plan are as follows :

(¥ in lacs)

016:

Fresent value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assels

Deoficit of funded plan a9 32 (6)
Unfunded plans 72 82 54
Deficit of Employee Benefit plans 112 94 48

{Iv} Post-Empleyment benefits

The significant actuarial assumptions

18| Maren 31,
Discount rate 7.A43%
Salary growth rale §.00% §.00% 6.00%
Expected return on assels T.63% 7.43% 7.91%

Mortality

Indian Asswred
Lives Maortality

(2006-08}

Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2006-08)

Inctian Assured
Lives Morlality
(2006-08)

Withdrawal ratle

5.00%

5.00%

5.00%

fea
&
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(v} Sensitivity analysis
The sensilivity of the defined benefit obligation 1o changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

{ ¥ inlacs)

mpactondelined benefitobligalion:
Herease. by 1% ecrease:by %
ek i Malciy 31 S a5 B
Gratuity
Discount rate 1% 1% (14} {14} 16 16
Salary growlh rate 1% 1% 14 14 (13) (13)
withdrawal rate 1% 1% 1 1 (1) {1)
I Leave Encashiment
Digcount rate 1% % {5} (8) 6 5}
Salary growih rale 1% 1% 2 2 (2) {2)
Withdrawal rate 1% 1% 1 - (&) (1)

The abieve sensitivity analyses are hased on & chinge in an assumpéon while holding all other assumptions constant, In practice, this is unlike
assumplions may be correlated, When cajculating the sensitivity of the dalined benefit ohligation o significant
has boon applied as hat usad for caleuiating he deflined benefil liabllity recogrised in the bakance shael,

ly to oceur, and changes in some of e
acturial assumption tha same method Lo, projected unit credit method

{vi) The major categories of plain assets are as foflows;
21. Employee benefit obligations

{ T in lacs)

Gratuity
Investment funds with IKotalk Gratuity Group Plan 201 100% 219 100%
{UNI-107L010V05)

198 100%

Fatal 201

100% 219 100% 198 100%

Trhe Company pays contribution 1o Kolak Graliity Group Plan

(UNI-1OTLIM OVOS) which inturn invests the amount it various instruments, As
(UNI-107LOTOVOS) in tolally basis aleng

itis done by Kolak Gratully Group Plan
with contiibulions from other particlpants, the Company wise investment in planned

assets-calegory / classwise is not availabls.
(vil} Risk exposure

The defined benefit obligations have the undermentioned risk exposures |

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation is

s calculated using a discounl rate based on government bonds, If bond yields fail, the definad henefil
obligation will tend to Increase,

Salary Inflation risks Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefil abligation,
Demographic risk: This is the risk of variabiify of results due
reirement. The effect of these decrements
discount rale and vesting criteria,

0 unsyslematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawai, disability and
on the defined benefit obdigation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase

(viii} Defined benefit Habifity and employer contributions
Expected contribution 1o pest employment benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 2018 is 27 lacs.
The weighted average duration of the definad benefit obligation is 13-43 vears (March 31, 2017 - 13.43 ye
gratuity and 13,13 years (March 31, 2017-12.15 years, April 1, 2016 - 12,82 years
mafurity analysls of undiscounted gratuily and leave encashment is as follows:

ars, April 1, 2016 - 13,10 years} in case of
}in case of Leave encashmenl in all the three years, The expeclad

{40}
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(2 In Lakhs)

March 31, 2018 5
Giratuity 19 12 13 1 15 166 241
Leave encashment & 4 4 3 4 51 72
Total 25 16 17 20 19 215 313
March 31, 2017 o
Gralulty 35 14 10 12 14 159 251
leave encashment 5 4 4 3 3 43 62
Total 40 15 14 15 17 212 313
darch 31, 2816

Graluity 34 16 8 8 g M7 192
Leave encashimant 5 3 3 Z 3 38 54
Toial 39 14 11 0 12 155 246

{¥ In Lakhs)

Rarticulars ;o

22 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET
Deferred Tax Liabillles on account of ;

Depraciation 210 219 230
Processing fess of term joan - - -
Total deferred tax liahilities (A) 219 219 230
Deferred Tax Assals on account of

Accrued expenses deductible on payment 2 8 20
Leave encashment and gratuity 3 G 4
Provisior Tor debts, advances and investments 39 40 43
Fair valualion of securily deposit Assets - - -
Unabsorbed deprociation and carred forward business 360 - -
loss

Less : Deferred Tax Assels not recognised 194 - B
Total deferred tax assets (B) 210 52 67
Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilitios (Net - A - 8) - 167 163

in terms of accounting policy note 1 () fellowed by the company, deferred lax assets of Rs 194 Lacs (2017 & 2016 « Rs Nit) have not been recognised.

Movement in deferred tax liabilities

Resimement o7

Cair Valua

it : : liability 2t fajr-valug y.inve

As at Aprit 1, 2016 230 - “ 230
Charged / {Credited); - - - -
- {o profit and loss (11) - - (11)
« to other comprehensive income - -
As at March 3%, 2017 219 - “ 219
Charged / (Credited):

- to profit and loss ) - - (9}
- o other comprehensive income - - -
As at March 31, 2018 210 - 210

Movement in deferred tax assets

“{and Invesinionis

IB ave!
“gnnash

As at April 1, 2016

43 - 4 -

Charged / (Credited):

- to prefit and loss (14) 3) - 4 - {13}
- to other comprehensive income {2) - ()
As af March 31, 2017 [ 40 - 6 3 - 52
Charged { (Credited):

- to prolit and loss (4) {1 - (3) 360 194 158
- to other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 2 39 - 3 360 194 219
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¥ n Lakhs)

23
CURRENT BORROWINGS
SECURED
Cash Credit from Banks
Axis Bank - - 791
HBFC Bank 682 902 842
YEES Barik 532 81z "
Packing Credit facility from Banks
YES Bank 348 - -
Short term loan frons othars
Working Capital Loan from
National Smalt Industries Corporation Lid 141 144 142
(NSICL)
UNSECURED
Inter Corporate Deposit
Related Party 770 - -
Others 1,316 725 347
Total Current borrowing 3,789 2,583 2,122

PARTICULARS OF BORROWINGS ¢
a) Security :
(i} Cash credit facllities are securad by way of hypothecation of all stack of inventories, book debts and other currenl assets of the conmpany, both

present anc fulure, ranking pari passu, The Company hag charge on fand, building and plant & Machinery for the cash credit facilily availed from
Yes Bank.

{ii} Working capital loan from National Small Industries Corporation Lid is secured by bank guarantee.

bl Terms of repayment and Interest ra
(i) Cash Credit from HO

Bank and YES Bank carry inferest at the rate of 12.28 % and 9.92% respectively,

(i} Working Capital Loan from National Small Industries Corporation Lid Carries inlerest at the rate of 41.95%.

iii} Inter Corporale Deposits generaily canry inlerast &l the rate between 10.00% (o 17.G0%. These deposils are repayable on malually agreed dates.
4

2
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(¥ In Lalkhs)

24 TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payahles 3,248 3,003 2,156
Trade payables to relaled parties 3 1 22
Total trade payables 3,251 3,004 2,178
Classification as required by MSME Act
Tolal outslanding dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Enlerprises®
Tolal cutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro Enlerprises and small
Enterprises 3,251 3,004 2178
Total trade payables 3,251 3,004 2,178
* Details of duss to Micre Enferprises and Small Enterprises as defined
under Micro, smatt & Medium Enterprisas Development Act, 2006
{MSME Act) are based on information made available to the Company.
Neither was thers any defay in payment nor is any Interest due and
remaining unpaid on the above.
25, OTHER GURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Current malurilies of long term debl 167 7 108
Currant maturities of car joan 19 24 22
Unclaimed dividend 5 6 G
Sacuwity deposils 13 - 2
Others:
- Liability for capital expenditure - - 57
- Other payables B74 735 391
Totat current financial liabilities 1,068 842 586
26 OTHER GURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from customers ¥ 41 223
Statutory and other dues 315 117 beit]
Liabilities refaled lo smployees 103 67 158
Other labilities 275 434 i
Total other current liahilities 700 659 591

(% I Lakhs)

27 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

a3 Sale of products (including excise duly) 11,103 12,745
Pharmaceutical { fabrics
b} Other operaling income
Sale of scrap 5 13
Excise duly recovered on operating incorne 4 11
conversion charges / income from job work 21 50
Miscellaneous - operating income - 1
Commission received. 4 1
Export duly credil ! duty drawback 4 18
Total revenue from operations 11,141 12,638
28, OTHER INGOME
Interest income 7 10
Intergst on others 4 1
Provisions / Liabilities wrilten back 53 17
Insurance claim local 24 1
Miscellaneous income - non operating 9 9
Prafit on sale of assets (net) - -
Total other income 95 48

IA3)

L2%
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(% In Lakhs)

29 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a} Raw Materdal Consumed
Opening Stock 1,213 673
Purchase 3,690 33728
4,903 4,002
Less: Sales - 3
Less: Closing Slock 1442 1.213
Raw Material Consumed 3,461 2,786
b) Packing Material Consumaed
Upening Stock 331 268
Purchases 641 934
1,022 1,202
Less: Sales - .
less: Closing Stock 370 331
Packing Material Consumed 652 871
Total Cost of material consumed 4,113 3,657
30 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Opening Inventories of ;
Finishad Goods 1.379 847
Work in Progress 108 49
1,487 936
Closing Inventories of :
Finkshed Goods 1,453 1,379
Work In Prograss 172 108
1,625 1,487
Total changes in Inventories of finished yoods, worl i progress {138) (551)
and stock-in-trade
31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries & wages 2,094 2,088
Confribution to provident and other Funds 162 153
Staff Welfare expenses 140 150
Total employes benefits eXpense 2,386 2,381
32 FINANCE CO8TS
Interest Expense
on borrowing from banks and others 429 330
Other Borrowing Costs
lean processing charges - 1
Total finance costs 429 331
33. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES
Deprocialion of property, plant and aquipment 178 196
Amgrtisation of intangible assets 1 1
Total depreciation and amortisation UXPEIGE 179 197
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(¥ In Lakhs)

34, OTHER EXPENSES

a) Operating, administrative & other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares 26 7
Rent 176 148
Rates & taxes 21 22
Sales tax G2 43
xcise duly 7V 601
Repairs & maintenance

Building 12 8

Piant & machinery 88 63

Cthers 16 15
Insurance charges 19 10
Electricily & water 23 24
Factory power & fuel 134 158
Job-work charges-manufacturing service charges 91 114
Tour & traveliing expenses 749 B37
Vehicle running & maintenance 53 A3
Coveyance expenses 7 25
Legal & professional fee 85 89
Membership fee & subscription 49 44
Office & general expenses 88 100
Postage and telegram 12 15
Bank charges 23 45
Printing & stationary 17 74
Charity & donations - 2
Foraign exchange rate fiuctuation on expenses 13 34
Festival & celebration expenses 2 2
Security expenses 25 36
Telephone & telex charges 42 G4
Laboratory expenses 5 4
ERP expenses - B
Directors fee 3 3
Trade marks 9 4
Loss on sale of assets 3 -
Auditors remuneration [refer note 34(a)] 9 10
(1) Selling & distribution expenses
Seiling expenses 7 9
Advertisement & publicity - 1
Business promotion expenses G642 383
Bad debt wrilten off 5 1
Provision for doubliul debts - 1
Clearing, forwarding & freight 173 183
Rebates & discount allowed 162 212
Insurance expenses - goods - in - transit - 4
Handling expenses 4 10
Ciearing & forwarding agents commission 311 419
Total other expenses 3,243 3,940

34. (a) Details of Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee 4 4
Tax audit fee 1 1
For other services such as cerification 4 3
Total auditors remuneration 9 10
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(¥ In Lakhs)

35 TAX EXPENSE
(a) Current Tax
Tax on profits for the year
Adjustments for prior periods

Total Income Tax

(b} Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assels
{Decrease} increase in deferred tax liabilities
Less : Recognised in QI

Total deferred tax expense / {benefity

Total tax expense

Profit before income lax expense
Tax at the rate of 30.900% (2016-30.000%)

Adjustments related to property, pla

quipments:

Adjustment on account of depreciablo assols
Unabsorbed business loss

Tax which are net deductible in calcwiating taxable income,

Provision for debts, advances and Investments

Adjustment in 438 (an payment basis)

Income tax adjustments (since income tax payable undet MAT - u /s 115.3)
Tax payable under MAT - ufs 14508

Income tax expense as per Income Fax

{c} Reconcitiation of tax expense and the accourting profit muftiplied by tax rate:

2

. F A“_
s B
{157 4
- (2)
{167) 6
{167) &
(1,288) 34
- 11
() (1}
(166) -
1 3
7 14
(187) 7
- (11)
- 2
(167) i)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Financial instruments by category

(¥ In Lakhs)

articylar
Financial assets
Investiments
- Equity instruments 14 17 H
Fixed Deposits 8 58 16
Trade Receivables 2979 2,995 2876
Cash and cash equivalents 168 13 23
Olher Bank Bajance 72 41 75
Security Deposits 163 162 139
Total financial assets 14 3,390 17 3,273 10 3,129
Financial liahitities
Borrowings 4,559 2,824 2,348
Security deposits 308 307 319
Trade payables 3,251 3,004 2,178
Capital croditors - . 57
Unctaimed Dividend 5 6 6
Others 878 739 395
Total financial Habiiities - 9,302 - 6.880 . 5,304
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(i} Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring falr value measurments

Financial Assets at FVQCT
fveslment in equity shares

Industrial Development Bank of India Limited 4 4 4
Viiaya Bank 14 13 §
Total financial assets at FYQC! 14 17 10

(ii) Fair Value hierarchy

This section explaing the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair valuss of the financial instruments that are (&) recognised and
measwred at fair value and {(b) measured at amortised cost and far which fair values are disclused in the financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in delermining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the tlwee lovels prescribed
under the accounting standard,

fevel 1:

Lavel 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity nstruments that have quotad price, The fair
value of all equity inslrumenis which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as al the reporling period.

Level 2:

The fair valus of financial instruments that are not tradad in an active marke! is determined using valuation technigues whick maximise the use of
observalile market data and rely as filfe as possible on enlity-spocific estimates. If all significant inputs required 10 fair vaiue an instrument arg
observable, the instrument is included in fove! 2.

Level 3:

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the insfrument Js included in tevel 3, This is the case for unlisted equity
securlties, securily deposits included in Jovel 3.

(iii} Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values arg disclosed
All the financial asset and financial liabilities measured at amortised Cost, carrying vate Is an approximation of lheir respective fair vaiue.

(iv} Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instriaments that are not raded in an active market s defermined using valuation techniques. The company uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions lnat are mainly based on market condlitions existing at the end of each
reporting period,

Financial risk management

The Company's aclivities expose it to market risk {he., currency risk, imerest rate risk and market price risk), Hquidity risk and credit risk. This note
expiaing the sources of risk which the Company is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk

The company's fisk management is cared out by a weasiry depatment uncker palicies approvad by he Board of Directors, Company Treasury identifies
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the con 1pany’s operating units. The board provides principles for overal risk management,
as well as policies covering spocific areas, such as foreign  exchange sk, interest rate risk, cedit sk, use of noh-derivative
Financial instruments and investment of excess licguiiclity,

{A) Market risk
(i} Foreign currency risk
The Company operates internalionally and Is exposed to forgign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, Foreign exchange risk

afises from futwre commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the respective companies’
functional currency,

The exposure of Lhe Company to foreign currency risk is not significant. The position of foreign currency exposure to the Company as at the end of the
year axpressed M INR are as Toliows

T In Lakhs)

Recevables

March 3¢, 2018

US Dollar (1S12) 514 -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 514 "

Warch 31, 2017
U8 Dollar (USD) 451 -
Net exposure to forelgn currency risk 451 -

Aprit 1, 2016

LS Dollar (USD) 547 -
Net exposure to forelgn curreney risk 547 "

{47
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Bensitivity:

If INR Is depreciated or appreciated by 5% vig-g-

a-vis foreign currency, the irpact thereof on the profit and loss of the company
given below :

(X In Lakhs)

arg

UBD sensitivity
INR fUSD Increases by 5% (March 31, 2017-5%)
INR 7 USD Increases by 5% (March 31, 2017-5%)

26
(28) (23)
" Hoiding alt other variabies conslant

{ii} Interest rate risk

The exposiwre of the company's borrowing to interest rate ch

anges at the end of the re
he borrowings and the expecled move

porting period depends on the mix of fixed rale and floaling rata of
ment of market interest rate. The Status of borr

owings in terms of fixed rale and floating rate are as folows :

S pailichars [ March 31, 2018 |- Maroh 312017 | Apri 4. 2076
Variable rale borrowings 2,532 1,714 1,833
Fixed rate horrowings 2527 1,110 716
Total borrowings 4,859 2,824 2,349

As at the end of the reporting period, the company had the following variable rate borrewings outstanding:
- e e "'Wﬁighi_ﬂ.d'ﬁ}fef'ag o orm——s e
i . Heretinterest rate
Warch 31, 2048
Bank overdraite, bank loans, Cash credit 11.23 2,332 48%
March 31, 2097
Bank overdrafts, bank loans, Cash credit 1115 1,714 61%
April 1, 2016
Bank overdraits, banl loans, Cash credit 12.47 1,633 0%

Sensitivity:

Profit or ioss is sensitive o higher / lower interest expense from horrowings as a resuit of chianges In inlerest rates.,

¥ n f.akhs)
Hnpacton profilalter lax :

Mz_és‘c.?_;ﬁ“}.
2018
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis [points (50 bps)* 2 9
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)* (12} el
(i#i) Price risk

The company's exposure to oquity securities price sk arises from investments held by the company in equity secutities and o
sheet as at fair value through profit or ioss, However, company does nof have a practice of nvesting in marke
valug changes gain, As per the company polictkes, whenever any investment is made b

some stralegic obfective or as a part of contraclual

Accordingly, company is not expose

(A} Credit Risk
Credil risk aris

assified in the balance
t equity seourities willh a view to earn falr
y the company in equity securlties, the same is made eilhor with

arangement. Further, at the reporting dale company does not hold material value of quoted securitios.,
d Lo significant market price risk,

@5 when a counter party defaults on contraciual obligations res
Trade receivabies consist of large number of cuslomers, spread across diverse industries and geag
loss from defaulters, the Company has an ongoing aredit evaluation process in respect of customers who are allowed credit petiod. I respact of watk-in-
cuslomers he company does nol alow any credit period and therefore, is not exposed to any credit risk.
In general, #is presumed that credit risk hag significantly increased singe initial recognifion if the payments
0 case basis,

ulting i financial loss fo the company.

raphical areas, n order to mitigate the risk of financial

arg more than 30-120 days 1Past due on case
(if) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade receivables (in Lakhs)

Loss allowance on April 1, 2046
Changes in loss alowance

Loss allowance on March 31, 2017
Changes in loss alowance

Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 129 J
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{B) Liquidity risk

The Company has a liquidity risk managemant framework for managing its short term, medium tenm and long term sources of funding vis-a-vis shor term
and long term utilization requirement. This is monitored through & rolling forecast showing the expected net cash flow, likely avaitability of cash ana cash

equivalents, and available undrawn honowing faciities,

i Finuncing arrangements: The POSiTiOI] of undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period are as follows:
% 2]
(g in Lﬂkhs)

Floating rate
Cash Credilf WCTL Facility

172

The hank overdraft and cash credit may be drawn at any time and may be terminaled by the bank withoul notice,

The table below analyses the company's alt non-derivative financial liabilities info relevant migturity based on their contractual maturitios,

The amounls disclosed in the table are the contraciual undiscounled cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial Habilities: {% In Lakhs)
Non-derivatives
March 31, 2018
Borrowings 3,965 i 513 4,859
Trade payables 3,251 3,251
Security deposits 13 296 309
Other financial {iabllities 879 4 883
Total non-derivative ligbilities 8,108 385 809 9,302
March 31, 2017 '
Borrowings 2,684 140 - 2824
Trade payables 3,004 - - 3,004
Securify deposits - 307 307
Other financial liabililies 741 4 - 745
Total non-derivative liabilitics G,429 144 307 6,880
April 1, 2016
Borrowings 2,252 97 - 2349
Trade payables 2178 - - 2,178
Securlly deposits 2 317 319
Other financial liabilities 454 4 - 458
Total non-derivative liabilities 4,686 101 317 5,304

38, Capital Management
{a) Risk Managoement

The company's objectives when managing capilal are to safeguard their ability to conlinue as a going concern, 56 that they can continue lo provide

retuins for shareholders and benefits for other stake helders, and maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital.

In order lo maintain or adjust the cepital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capilal to sharehaldors,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt,

Cansisient with others in the industry. The company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net dabl (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalenls) divided by Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

The gearing ratios of the Company are as follows:

(Rupees in Lacs)

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Net debt (not cash and cash equivalents) 4,859 2,824 2,349
Total equily 586 1,691 1,670
Net debt 1o equity ratio 829% 187% 140%

al,

149
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(.} List of Related Parties
A.Key Management Personnel of the company and close member of Key
Mansgement Personnel of the COImFETY
i} Mr. Abhay Kanorta
iy Mr. Uddhay Kanoria
i} Mr. Upendra G. Pale!
v} M N Alanedail
v)  Ms. Neha Rajen Gada
viy  Mr. Nirbhay Kanoria
vil) M. Pauly Sukumar Nuthakki
vili) Mr. Sanatbkumar Shirali
ix) Mr Manish Jagnenl (From 121h Fab, 2018}
%) Mr. Naveen Kumar Gupta (Upto 11th Aug, 2017}
i} Mr. Aditya Kumar Jain (From August, 2017)
Xty Mrs, Pallav! Kanoria (Wile of Mr, Abhay Kanoria)
xifiy M VB, Haribhakti (Upto 30th May, 2016)

(B} Subsidiaries
i) Anglo Fronch Drugs & Inciusiries PTI Lid,

{C) Enterprises which are past employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
i) The Anglo French Drug Go. (C8TN) Lid Emplovec's Gratuily Fund
i} Group Supperannuation Scheme undar LIC of India

D. Enterprises in which Key Managemeni Personnel and close member of
Key Management Personnel have joint controf,

i} Aakruti Invesiments Lid.

fiy Abhay Kanoria Family Trust

iii} Broach Textile Mills Ltd.

iv) Ekta Tie-up Pyt Lid.

v) GBK Charitable Trust

vi} Radha Kosari Spinning Mills Ltd.
vil) Sudarshan Exports Lid.
vili}Sudarshan Services 1.4d,
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3% RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(b} Transactions with Relaled Parties for the year ended March 31, 2018

(¥ In Lukhs)

RANSACTIONS:

Entefises which:

{i) Rent paid

Sudarshan Services Lid, - kb

Mr. Abhay Kanoria 10 ki
Mrs, Pallav] Kanoria 10 4
(i) Recelving of Services « Administrative,

Commercial & Accounting service

Sudarshan Services Lid. 3 2

{iii} Interest Paid

Sudarshan Services Lid, 13 - -
(iv} Remuneration Paid

Mir. Abhay Kanorig - - 54 54
Mr. Uddhav Kanoria - - 45 24
Mr, Nirhay Kanoria - - 34 5
Wrs. Pallavi Kanoria 18 17
My Naveen Kumar Gupta - - 12 30
Mr. Manish Jagnani 2 -
Ir. Aditya Kumar Jain o -
(v) Director’s Sitting Fees

Mr. Sanatkumar Shirali 0.5 0.5
Ms. Neha Rajen Gada 0.7 0.5
W Upendra G. Pate) 0.5 0.8
Mr. N Ahmedali 0.8 0.4
., VLB, Haribhakti 0 0.3
Mr, Pauly Sukumar Nuthakki 0.2 0.3




Anglo-Freneh Drugs & Tndustries Limited
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(¥l Lakhs)y

INGOM

i} Sale of Pharmaceutical Products

Anglo-Franch Drugs & Indusliies PTE Lid,

80

OTHER REGEIRPTS:

i) Inter Corporate Deposit Received

Sudarshan Services Lid,

509 - -

Contribution of Graluity Fund

The Anglo French Drug Co. (ESTN) Lid Employee's

Gratuity Fung

Gratuity Fund b s
Refund of Gratuity
The Angio French Drug Go. (ESTN) Lid Employee's 32 1

(¢) Outstanding Balances as on March 31, 2018

{¥in Lakhs)

PAYARLES:

i) For Goods & Services

Sudarshan Services Lid, - - 21 3 i 1
ii} Inter Corporate Deposit
Sudarshan Services Lid, 70 - -
LOANS & ADVANCES AND RECEIVABLES: [ ] | ! f | | f |
iii) For Gaods 8 Services
Anglo - French Drugs & industries Ple Lid, | 272 200 136
iv) Security Deposit
Mr. Abhay Kanaria 13 13 i3
{52}
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40 Contingent Liabilities
The Company had contingent liabilities at March 34, 2018 in respect of

(a} Claims against the Company pending appetiate / Judicial decisions rot acknowledged as debts :

(¥ in Lakhs}

a) Value Added Tax / Sales Tax 152 186 96
I3} Income - tax 198
c} Service Tax / Excise Duty 158 137 220
The Management helieves that the cutcome of the above will not have any material adverse effect on the financial position of the company.
(b} Guarantees:
i. Counter guararitees issued to banks and remaining cutstanding INR 442 lacs (2017-INR 565 lacs; 2018- NI 514 iacs)
ii. Letter of credit opened and remaining outstanding INR 193 {acs (2017-INR 9 lacs; 2016-NIL).
41 Leases
{a) Non - cancellable operating leases
As a Lessee
The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements primarily for office premises, gedown and guest house premises for its
employees. During the year, the company has recognised lease rent expense of INF 168 Lacs (2017: iNR 128 lacs) refated to such
non-cancelable operating lease. The future minimum lease payments payable by the company taken under non-canceliable operating
lease, are as under -
(X in Lakhs)

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellabie operating
leases are payable as follows;

Within one year 161 161 145
Later than one year but not later than five years 568 624 635
Later than five years 16 122 2Pz
42 (a) Detalls of Raw Materials Consumed (¥ in Lakhs)

Y

PHARMACEUTICALS

Calcium D Pantohenate 1P Kgs 74,393 682 30,881 843

Ascoric Acid Kgs 20,694 914 101,686 522

Miscellaneous - 1,864 1,409

(None individuaity account for more than 10%

of total consumption)

FURNISHING FABRICS

Yarn Kgs - - 6,218 12
3,460 2,786
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{£ln Lakhs)

(b} Value of Raw Materials Stores and Spare Parts consumed:

a) Raw & Packing Materials
tmported G N
Indigenous 3451 100 2,786 100
3,460 100 2,786 100
b} Stores and Spare Parls
Imported - .
Indigenous 26 106 7 100
26 100 7 100J

{c) Purchase of Stock - in-Trade

F In Lakhs)

FORMULATION:
&) Tablets Million 194 1,003 139 921
b) Liquids Bottles 4,255,385 396 5,804,438 672
¢} Injections Litres 79,247 121 63,863 155
d) Capsules Million 36 386 56 624
@) Granules Kgs 2,868 3 1,622 3
) Powder Kys 110,437 116 40,985 50
@) Ointment Kgs 48,712 241 63,445 387
h) Raw Malerials Kgs - - -
i) Picking Materials Kgs - - - -
j¥ Cthers Nos. 618,890 46 579,528 71
k) Fabrics itrs - - - -
2,312 2,883

{d} Value of Imports on CIF basis

(% in Lakhs)

i) Raw Materiats
iiy Components and Spare Parts
Expenditure in Foreign Currency
F.OB. Value of Exports

In Foreign Currency

916,240

1,081,167

43 Company's investment in 100% Subsidiary ‘Angle French Dru
in nature and which has been provided in th
during the vear ended 21st Mareh, 2018 and, as of that date
liabilities exceeded its tolal assets by Rs 12
as a going concern MHowever, as
amounting Rs 272 Lacs which

4

o

{ncrease in cost of materials, re
formulation as prescribed by N

result of the company. The Company has incurred ioss before

As per para 4 of Indian Accounting Standard
statements of a parent that is within the scope

o

e books on the date of transition to
 AFGIPL current
2 Lacs, These factors raises substant;
ber management projections no adjustment i
is oulstanding as on 31st March,

95 & Industiies PTE
Ind

s
2018, {Refer Note

striction in increment of sale price (MRP) in refation to increment of manufacturing cost of product under non-set
ationai List of Essential Medicing (NLE

tax an

liabi
al doubt that the sa

M) and overaft
nounting 1o Rs. 1,288/
Company Is working on the effectiveness of manufacturing cost as well as o increase sales

, Limited Singapore {

AFDIPLY amounting Rs 24 lacs is fong term
AS (Refer Note 63,

AFDIPL. has incurred a net loss of Rs. 5 Lacs
lilies exceeded its current assets by Rs 116 Lacs and its total
id subsidiary Company will be able to continue
necessary for impairing the carrying cost of Trade Receivables
113,

Neduled
perating
18. The management of the
rating surplus in near future.

reduction in sales volume has adversely affected the o
Lacs during the year 2017~

velume for generating ope

ins both the consolidated financial
ial statements, segment information is required

equired under Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments js given in the
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46 Barnings per Equity share

(a) Basic earnings per share {96.43) 2.24
{b) Diluted earnings per sharg (86.43) 2.24

{c) Reconciliations of camings used in calcutating earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity helders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share (1.121) 26

Profit attributable to the equify holders of the cempany used in calculating diluted camings per share (1,121} 26 J

(d) Weighted average numher of shares used as the denominator

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denomination in calculating basic earnings per share 1,162,500 1,162,500

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share; ~

Weighted average number of equily shares and potential equity shares used as the dencminater in calculating 1,162,500 1,162,500
diuted earnings per share. J

47 Research and Development Expenses

Material Consumption 3 a
Laberatery consumption E "
Employee Benefits Expense 16 13
Cthers 1 1

20 28

48 First-time adoption of Ind AS
Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS

The accounting policies sef out in note 1 have been applied in. preparing the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2018, the comparative
information presented in these financia! statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS halance sheet at
April 1, 2016 (date of transition to Ind A8). in preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheat, the company has adjusted the amounts feported proviousiy
in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies {Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2006

(as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act,

Set out below are the applicable ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatery exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP {6 Ind AS.

A. Exemptions and exceplions avaited
A. 1ind AS optioral exemptions
{a) Deemed cost

ind AS 101 permits a first-ime adopter o elect to continue with the canying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
financial statements as af the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the dale of
transition. This exemption is also used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assels.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure ali of ifs property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value,
which has been considered as deemed cost.

{b) vestiments in subsidiaries

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to measure its invesiments in subsidiaries at deamed cost, which should be either
{i} fair vaiue at the entity’s darte of transition to Ind AS in its separate financial statemants; or

(ii} previous GAAP carrying amount at that daie

The company has elected to messure in its separate financial statements all of its investments in subsidiaries at their previous GAAP carrying amount
on the date of transition.
rg‘i—s}




Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

Noles to Accounts - Contd,

A2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
(a) Esfilates

Eslimates made under ind AS as atAprit 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as under revious GAAR,
(b) Classification and measurement of flnancial assets

Ind AS 101 requires that an anlity should assess the classification of s financial assels an he basis of facls and clreumstances exist on ihe date
of ransilion. Accordingly, in its Opening ind AS Balance Sheal, he company has classified all the linancial assets on the basis of facls and
circumstances that existed on the date of transition, i.e., April 1, 20186.

49 Reconciliation between previcus GAAP and Ind AS -

I. Recenciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2017 and April 4, 2016 (X in Lakhs)

Total aquity (shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP

Adjustments

Faii valuation of equity investmenls 1 1 3
Fair valuation of investments in subsidiary 2 {24 (24}
Falr valuation of security deposits paid 3 (1) (1}

Processing Charges

=N
Y

Fair Valuation of Gratuity Liabilily 5 12 10
Tax effects of adjustments 6 - -
Total adjustments (1) (1)
Total equity as per Ind AS 4,691 1,676

Il. Reconciliation of total comprehensive incoma for the year ended March 31, 2017 ®In Lakhs)

Profit alter lax as per pravious GAAP 5
Adjustments

Fair valuation of Security deposits paid 3 M
Processing Charges on Borrowings 4 (1)
Fair Vatuation of Gratuity Liability 5 2
Remeasurement of Post-employment benefit oligations (Net of Tax) 7 21
Total adjustments 21
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 26
Other comprehensive income (Net of Fax) 147 {(11)
Total comprohensive income as per Ind AS 145

{56}
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Notes to Accounts - Contd.

) lmpact of Ind AS Adoption on cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2017 (T in Lakhs)

Net cash flow frony operating activities (39) (55) (94)
Net cash flow from investing activities {83) 23 {60)
Net cash flow from financing activities 110 34 144
Others {unrealised forex gain / joss) (34}

Netincrease / {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (46) z (10}
Cash and cash equivalents as at Apiif 1, 2016 98 23
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2017 §52 13
The impact in cash flow stalement are due o adjusiments explained befow.

50
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o)

Fair valuation of equity investments

The company holds investment in Equity Shares of entitles other than subsidiaries, associate and joint venture. Under previous GAAP such
investments were measured at cost less provision for other than temporary nature diminution in the value of investment.

Under ind AS, these investments has been measured at fair value, The company has categerised these investments as falr value through Other
Comprehensive income (FYQCH and any changes in fair value of these investment has been recognised in the statement of profit and logs,

Fair valuation of investments in subsidiary

The company holds investment in Equity Shares in subsidiary. Under previous GAAP such investments were measured al cost, Under Ind AS,
this investments has been measured at cost. Company generally follows an acceunting policy of making provision in case of permanent diminution
only. Hewever, considering the negative networth of the subsidiary, Company has made full provision for abundant caution and adjustment made
in retained earning on the date of transition. .

Fair valuation of security deposits paid

Under the previous GAAP, interest free Jease securlly deposits assets (that are refundabie in cash on completion of the contract term) are recorded
at their transaction value, Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value at initial recognition and subsequently at
amortised cost. Accordingly, The company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair valye and fransaction
value of the security deposit has been recegnised as prepaid rent,

Processing Charges on Borrowings

Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliies are recognised as transaction cost of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilifies will be drawn down. To the extent there ie no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be dramm down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the peried of facilities to which it relates.

'nd AS 109 requires transaction cest incurred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying ameuni of borrowings on initial
recognilion. These costs are recognised in the profit and loss over the fenure of the borrowings as part of the interest expense by appiying the
effective interest rate method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to prefit and foss as and when incurred. Accordingly
borrowing as on the date of transition have been reduced with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings,

£

Fair Valuation of Gratuity Liability

Adjustments made in the gratuity liabilify as on the date of transition Le. April 4, 2016 as well as March 31, 2017 as per the requirement of Ind AS.

o1

Tax effects of adjustments

Additional deferred tax asset/ (iability} has been recognised corresponding to the adjustments to retained earnings / profit or loss as a result of Ing
AS Implementation,

=~

Remeasurement of Post-employment henefit obligations (Net of Tax):

Under ind A3, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, uniess a standard requires
or permits otherwise. ltems of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss buf are shown in the statement of profit and loss as
‘other comprehensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined benefit plans. The concept of other comprehensive income did not exist under
previous GAAP. Accerdingly, foss on remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation has been reclassified to the Other Comprehensive
Income for the period.

The previous year figures have been regrouped/ reananged whereyer necessary to make i comparable with the current year.

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 311027

Arpit Parasmal Shah

Fartner
Membership Number 180949 Manish Jagnani N. Ahmedali Abhay Kanoria
Mumbai, 30th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Director Chairman & Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ANGLO-FRENCH DRUGS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated ind AS
financial statements of ANGLO-FRENCH DRUGS &
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (herginalter referrad to as "the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaty together referred to as “the Group™, comprising the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
consclidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive incoma), the consolidated statement of cash
flow and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and olher explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as "the consolidated ind AS financial staiemenis™)
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS

Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Direclors is responsible
for the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial
statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred io as “the Act")that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income),
consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the Group In accerdance with accounting principles
generally accepled in India including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 20%4. The
respective Board of Direclors of the companies included ins the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Acl for
safeguarding lhe assels of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other iregularitizs: the selection and
applicalion of appropriate accounting polices; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
ifternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, refevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true ang fair view and are free
from material misstatement, Whether due to fraud or GO,
which has been used for the purpese of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements Iy the Direclors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor's Responsibifity

Ow responsibility is to express an opinion: on these
consolidated Ind As financial statements based on our audit, We
have taken into acoount the nrovisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the auditreport under the provision of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statemenls in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143 {10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perforny the audit {o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidaled tnd AS financial statements are fres
from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated Ind As financial statements. The procedures
selecled depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consofidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud
or eror. tn making those risk assessments, the auditor
considars internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company's. preparation of the consclidated Ind AS financial
stalements that give a tue and fair view it order o design audit
procedires that are approprisgte in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Molding Company's Board of Diractors,
as well as cvaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated Ind As financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred 1o In the "Other Matters” paragrash betow, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
onthe consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informalion and
according fo the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of report of other auditor on separate financial
statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidaled Ind AS financial
slatements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in india
meluding the Ind AS, of the consdlidated financial position of the
Group as ai March 31, 2018, and their consolidated profit{loss)
inclikiing other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash
flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year ended onthat date.

Other Matters

i} We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary,
whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs.154 Lacs
as at 31st March, 2018, iotal revenues of Rs. 85 Lacs for the
period ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements. This financlal statements have been
audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion, in so far as it relates o the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary,
is based solely on the reporl of the other audilor, We have
audited the conversion adjustments made by the Company’s
management,

Our opinion o the consclidated Ind AS financial statements,
and our repert on Other Legal and Regulalory Requirements
below, are nol modified in respect of the above matiers with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the report of the
other auditor.

if) We draw attention to note 43 in the consolidated financiat
stalements. The subsidiary of the company ‘Anglo French
Drugs & Industries PTE, Limited Singapore (AFDIPL) has
incurred a net loss of Rs. 5 Lacs during the year ended 31st

g
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March, 2018 and, as of that date, AFDIPL current liabifities
exceeded its current assets by Rs 116 Lacs and its total labilities
exceaded its total assets by Rg 122 Lacs, These factors indicaie
the existence of a material uncertainly which may cast
significant doubt overthe AFDIPL s ability to continue as a going
concern. However, as per the views of auditors of the subsidiary
company, the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern is dependent on the undertaking of its immediate and
ultimate holding company. Helding Company has to provide
continuing financiat support to enable the Company 1o meetils
labilities as and when they fal due.

i) The closing inventory of the Hoilding Company has not been
verified by us as on 31" March, 2018 & lhe same have heen
carlified by the management.

iv) Trade receivable includes Rs.125.64 Lacs as on 31st March
2018 from Viva Remedies, which in the opinion of the Holding
Company is good and recoverable from Viva Remedies.

v} The Holding Company is in the process of taking
Professional Tax Registration for the States of Kerala and Tamil
Nadu.

vi) Adverse effect of increment of manufacturing cosl and
reduction in overall sale volume resulting in operating loss
before tax amounting fo Rs.1,288 Lacs incurred by the Holding
company during the year, (Refer to Note 44 to the financial
statements).

vit) The comparalive financial information of the Group for the
yvear ended March 31, 2017 and the {ransition date opening
balance sheetas at April 1, 2016 included in these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, are the consolidated figures of
separate Ind AS financial statements of ANGLO-FRENCH
DRUGS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED(holding company) and it's
subsidiary incorporated in cutside india, these consolidaied
financial statements audited by predecessor auditor and on
which predecessor auditor expressed an unmodified opinions in
the reports for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31,
2016 dated 10" August, 2017and 9" August, 2016 respectively.
Separate financial statements of subsidiary which are
incorporated outside India have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generaily accepted in that country
and which have been audited by other auditor under generaily
accepted auditing standards applicable in that couniry.

We have audited the conversion adjustments made by the
Company's management. Qur opinion in s far as it relates to
the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located outside india
is based an the report of other auditor and the conversion
adjustments prepared by the management of the Company and
audited by us.

Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthese matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Regquirernents

1. Asrequired by Seclioni43 (3) of the Act, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

(a) We have soughi and obtained all the information and

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesatd consclidated IndAS financial staternents.

(L) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by

law relating to preparation of the afore said consolidated Ind

AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears

from our examination of those hooks and the reports of the

other auditors.

(c} The consolidated balance Shest, the consolidated
slalemerd of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of
cash flow and consolidaied statement of changes in equity,
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the retevant
hooks of account makntained for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
{d) tn our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS
financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companiss (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
(&) On the basis of the written representations received from
the dirgctors of the Holding Company as on 31*March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Direciors of the Holding
Company, none of the directors of the Holding company is
disquatified as on 31"March, 2018 from being appointed as
adirectorinterms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
(f) With respect o the adequacy of the inlernal financial
contrals over financial reporting of the Holding Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate reportin Annexure,
{g) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Comgpanies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 read with the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendment Rules, 2017,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the report of the other auditor on separate
financial statements as aisc the other financial information
ofthe subsidiary as noted in the "Other Matters”

paragraph:

i. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the
impact of pending litigation on the consoiidated financial
position in its consolidated Ind AS financial statements in
respect of claims and demands of the Group which are
heing contested as mentiched innote 40,

. The Group did not have any fong-term contracts including
derivative contracis for which there were any material
foresesable losses.

.There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and ifs
subsidiary company incorporated outside India during the
year ended 31.03,2018,

For KAMG & Associates
Firm's Registration No.311027E

Arpil Parasmal Shah
Partner
Membership No.: 180949

Place: Mumbai
Date; 30th May, 2018
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AFDIL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 3]
of Bub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, .
2013 ("the Act™)
in conjunction With our audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial stalements of the Group for the vear ended March 31,
2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of ANGLO-FRENCH DRUGS &
INDUSTRIES LIMITED ¢hereinafler refarred to as "the Holding
Company™} except the subsidiary company, ANGLO FRIENGH
DRUGS & INDUSTRIES PTE. LT which is not audited by us,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The respeclive Board of Direclors of the Holding Company
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the intemal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of intermnal control stated in tha Guidance
Nete on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India('lCAI).These responsibifiies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adeqguate internal financial
confrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence ta the
respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as reguired under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Ourresponsibility is o express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial contrels over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our auditin accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internal Financial Congrols over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the IGAl and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financiat controls,
bath issued by the Instilute of Chartered Accountants of India,
Those Standards and the Guidance Nofe require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtair reasonable assurance ahout whether adequate
internat financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and I such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial contiols
system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over | inancial reperting, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures seiected depend on the
auditors’ Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

|
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting
A company's intemal financial control over financial

reporting s a process designed o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial staierments for
external purposes In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes (hose policies and proceduras
that

(1) pertairt fo the mainienance of records that, in reasenable
detail, accurately and faily reflect the fransactions and
disposilions of the assets of the company;

(2} provide reasonable assurance hat transaclions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated
Ind AS financial slatements in accordance with generally
accepled accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of managament and
directors of the company; and

{3 provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assels that could have a
materfal effect on the consolidated Ind AS financiat
slatements,

Inherent Limifations of internai Financial Confrols Over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of, internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management ovelride of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject o the risk that the internal. financial conlrel over
financlal reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

in our opinion, the Holding Company have in all material
respects, an adeguale internat financial controls systern over
financial reporting and such internal financia! controls over
financial reporting were operaling effectively as at March
31,2018 except for the internal controf system followed in the
areas of inventory management such as periodical physical
verification of stock and input outpul reconciliation which effects
the cost of production and secondly, pending reconciliation of
Sales Tax/VAT, Excise Duty, Service Tax and other indirect taxes
of pre GST pericd which are oufstanding as on 31st March,
2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Raporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ingia,

Other Matter
Reporting on Internal Financial Controls over financial
reparting Is not applicable to subsidiaries and jolnt

ventures incorporated outside India,

For KANiG & Associates
Firm's Registration No.311027E
Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner
Membership No.; 180049

Place: Mumbai
Data: 30th May, 2018
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018 {Consolidated) {&In Lakhs)
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4 1,580 1,738 1,838
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 5 3 4 3
FINANCIAL ASSETS
{i) Investments 3] 4 17 10
(i} Trade Receivables 7 - - -
(iif) Cther Non-Current Financial Assets 3] 99 158 89
OTHER NON CURRENT ASBETS 9 28 17 53
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,724 1,935 1,993
CURRENT ASSETS
INVENTORIES 10 4,065 3,560 1,878
FINANCIAL ASSETS
(i) Trade Receivables ‘ 11 2,832 2,898 2,777
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 197 14 29
(i) Other Bank Balances i3 72 41 75
(iv) Other Current Financial Assets 14 72 G1 66
CURRENT TAX ASSET (NET) 15 84 83 62
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 16 1,536 799 809
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,858 7,486 5,696
TOTAL ASSETS 10,582 9,391 7,689
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EGQUITY
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 17 116 116 116
OTHER EQUITY 18 349 1,457 1,428
TOTAL EQUITY 466 1,873 1,544
LIABILITIES
NON-CGURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(I} Borrowings 18 894 140 a7
(i) Other Nen-Current Financial Liabilities 20 300 3N azi
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT GBLIGATIONS 21 57 48 41
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET 22 - 167 183
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 622 1,261 666 622
CURRENT LIABILITIES )
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{i} Borrowings 23 3,789 2,683 2122
(il) Trade Payables 24 3,248 3,010 2,158
(i) Other Current Financial Liabilities 25 1,088 842 586
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 26 705 671 650
EMPLOYEER BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS 21 55 4G 7
TOTAL GURRENT LIABILITIES 8,866 7,152 5,623
TOTAL EQUITY AND LLABILITIES 10,662 9,391 7,689

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For KAMG & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm's Registration Number 3110278

Aspit Parasmal Shah

Pairtner
Membership Number 160849 Manish Jagnani N. Ahmedaii Abhay Kanoria
Mumbai, 30th May, 2018 Chief Financial Officer Dirgctor Chairman & Managing Director
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Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Consolidated)

INCOME

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

FINANCE COSTS

DEPREGIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

OTHER EXPENSES

TOTALL EXPENSES
PROFITILOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX
EXCEPTIONAL {TEMS - PROFIT / {LCSS)
PROFIT/HLOSS) BEFORE TAX
TAX EXPENSE
CURRENT TAX
DEFERRED TAX
PROFIT/ (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of Post-emplayment benetit obligations
- Change in equity instruments- Fair vaiue through Other Comprehensive income
- Tax relating to these iteams
1} Currant Tax
2) Deferred Tax

Total Other Comprehensive income/ (l.oss) for the year, net of tax
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per equily share (in INR) (Face value INR 10}
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

27
28

29

30

31
32
33
34

4G
40

1,140 12,866
101 48
1,241 12,914
4,113 3,657
2,312 2,888
(138) 5513
2,386 2391
429 331
179 197
3,251 3,953
12,532 12,866
(1,291) 48
(1,291) 48
. 2
(167) 6
{1,124) 40
21 =1
(4} 8
(1} 2

i6 (1)
(1,108} 29
(96.69) 3.44
{96.69) 3.44

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For KAMG & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Registration Number 3110271

Arpit Parasmal Shah

Partner

Membership Number 180549
Mumbai, 30th May, 2018

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Manish Jagnani N. Ahmedali
Chief Financial Ofiicer Director

Abhay Kanoria

Chairman & Managing Director
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Statement of changes in equily for the year ended March 31, 2018

A. Equity share capital

As at April 1, 2016

Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at March 31, 2017 116
Changes in equity share capital dwing the vear -
As at March 31, 2018 116

B, Other ecquity

¥ In Lakhs)

1,428

Balance at April 1, 2016 43 549 766 -

Profit for the year - B 40 - 40
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax “ . {19) 8 (i)
Total Comprehensive Income for {he year - - 21 8 29
Balance as at March 31, 2017 43 549 787 8 1,457
Balance as at April 1, 2017 43 549 T8y 8 1,457
Profit for the year - - (1,124) - (1,124)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax - - 20 (4) 16
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - . {1,104) (4} {%,108)
Balance as at March 341, 2018 43 549 (317} 4 349

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements

This is the Statement of chan
For KAMG & ASSOCIATE

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 3110278

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner

Membership Number 180948

Mumbai, 30th May, 2018

ges in equity referred to in our report of even date.

Manish Jagnani
Chief Financial Officer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ahmedali
Director

Abhay Kanoria
Chairman & Managing Director
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Consolidated)

(¥ In L.akhs)

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (L.oss) hefore income tax {1,291} 48
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense e 197
(Gainpioss on disposal of properly, plant and equipment 3 -
Provisions Written Back (&8) (17)
interest income classified as investing cash flows (2} (11)
Finance costs 429 331
Change in operating assets and liabifities
{Increase) /Decrease in trade receivables 66 (121)
(Increase) IDecrease in inventories (508) {1,682)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets 48 (65}
{Increase)/ Decrease in ofher non-current assets (1%} (12)
{Increase)/Decrease in oller current assets {737) 10
Increasef! (Decrease) in trade payables 297 BG8
Inciease/ (Decrease) in employee benefit obligations 39 25
Increase/ (Decrease) in other financial liabilities 141 332
increase/ (Decrease) in other current Fabilities 34 21
Cash generated from operations {,369) (76)
Income faxes paid {net of refund) {2) {23)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (1.371) {39)
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equiprnent (27) {109
Proceeds from sale of propenty, plant and equipment 4 3
Changes in Other bank balances (31 34
Interest received 3 12
Net cash outflow from Investing activities {81) {60)
Cash flows from financing activitios
Proceeds from borrowings:
Term Loan 77 95
Cash Credit (net) {152) 81
Gthers 1,358 360
Repayment of borrowings:
Term Loan 80 {58)
Car Loan (27} (23)
Interest paid (429) (339
Dividends paid {1y B
Net cash inflow (outflow) from Financing activities 1,605 ~ 144
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 183 (15)
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year 14 29
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 197 14

The accompanying notes form an integra! part of the Financial Statements

This Is the Statement of Cash Flows referred {o in our repert of even date.

For KAMG & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Finm's Registration Number 311027E

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner

Membership Number 160949
Mumbai, 30th May, 2018

Manish Jagnani
Chief Financial Officer

N. Ahmedali
Director Chairman & Managing Director

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Abhay Kanoria

H



ANGLO-FRENCH DRUGS & INDUSTRIES LIMITED.

NOTES TOACCOUNTS CONSOLIDATED
GENERALINFORMATION

Anglo French Drugs & Indusiries Limited {"the
company”) is & company fimited by shares, incorporated
and domiciled in India having its Registered Office at
Bengaluru. The company is primarily engaged in
manufacturing of pharmaceutical formulations. As per letier
no MSE! LIST/ 2018/ 18 dated January 1, 2018 issued by
the Metropolitan Stock Exchange, Equity shares of the
Company are listed and admilied to dealings on the
Exchange w.ef January 4, 2018 vide notice number
MSE/LIST/S903/2018 dated January 1, 2018,

The consolidated financial statements relate to Angle
#rench Drugs & Industries Limited and its subsidiary
company as referred in Note 50 (Collectively referred as
“the Group”).

i
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting
policies adopled in the preparation of these consclidated
financial staterents of the company. These policles have
baen consistently applied to alt the perieds presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(2) BASIS OF PREPARATION
{i) Compliance withInd AS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance wilh the Companies (indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as & going concern on an
acorual basis. The consolidated financial statements up lo
vear ended 31 March 2017 were prepared earlier in
accordance with the accounting slandards notified under
the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as
amended)and other relevant provisions of the Act,

These consolidated financial statements are the first
consolidated financial statements of the company undes Ind
AS and the transition was cartied out in accordance with Ind
AS 101, "First lime adoption of Indian Accounling
Standards, Refer Note 48 for an explanation of how the
transilion from previous GAAR to Ind AS has affected the
company’s financial position, iinancial performance and
cash flows.

(i} Hligtorical cast convention

The consolidated Financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

- aquity investments in enfilies olher than subsidiary, joint
ventures and associate which are measured at fair value,

- Cerlain financial assets and Habilities that are measured
al fair value;

- defined benefit plans - plan assets mesasured at fair
value,

{iii} Use of estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles,
management is required to make judgements, eslimaies
and assumplions that may affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets

&iiabllities as at the date of consolidaied financial stalements
and the amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reported period. The estimates and assumptions used in the
accompanying conselidated financial statements are based
upon managemenl's evaluation of facts and clicumslances
as at the date of the consolidated financial statement. Actuat
results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumplion are revigwed on an ongoing basis,
Any revision o such estimales is recogrised in the period the
same is delermined,

{b) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subhsidiary

Subsidiary is an entity over which the group has contrel. The
group controls an entity when the grou» is exposed to, or has
rights Lo, variabie returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power fo
direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary is fully
consolidated from the date on which control is ransferred to
the group. It is decensolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition methed of acoounting is used to account for
husiness combinations by the group.

The group combines the financial statements of the parent
and its subsidiary line by line adding together fike items of
assets, Habilities, equity, income and expenses. Inter Group
ransactions, batances and unrealised gains on fransactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised loses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
grsure consistency with the policies adopted by the group.
{¢) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properiy, plant and equipment is stated al hislorical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Historical Cost represents direct expenses incurred on
acquisition of the assets and the share of indirect expenses
relating to acquisition allocated in proportion to the direct cost
mvolved. Subsequent costs are included In the assets
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The camnying
amount of any compeneni accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during
the reporling peried in which they are incurred.

Transition to MJAS

On transifion o Ind A8, the company has elected to
continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plantand
eauipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying vatue as the deemed
costofthe property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual value

Depreciation on property, plantand equipmentis provided
on *Siraight Line Method’ based on useful ife as prescribed
under Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013, The residual
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values are not more than 5% of the originai cost of the asset,
The assets 'residual values angd useful lives are reviewsd,
and adjusted if appropriate, al the end of each reporting
period,
Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future
henefits are expscted from its use or disposal. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. Thase are Included in profit or ioss
within other gains / (fosses),
{d) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Measurement at recognition:

intangible Assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight
ine basis over their aclual usefyl fives or upto 6 years
whichever is lower, The amorlisation period and the
amortisation method are reviewed at least al each financial
yoar end. I the expected useful ke of the asset is
significanily  different from previous  estimates, the
amortisation period is changed accordingly.

The costof an intangible assetcomprises ofits purchase
price including any import dulies and other laxes (other than
those subsaquently recoverable from the taxing aulhorities)
and any directly atiributable expendilure on making the
assel ready for ils intended use, Expenditure on
development eligible for capitalisation are carried as
intangible assets under developmant’ when such assets
are notyetready forthe intended use,

Subsequent Expenditure;

Subsequent Expenditure is capitalised onty if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure wiltflow io the Company,

Transition to lnd AS:

Upen first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has
clected to apply deemed cost exemption for all of its
intangible assets as al the dale of transition 10 ind AS i.e.
April 01, 20186. Accordingly, the Company has continued
with the carrying value under Previous GAAP for all of its
intangible assets recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at the date of transition to frd AS,
Derecognition:

The carrying amount of an intangible asset s
dergcognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
iosses arising from the retrement or disposal of an
intangivle asset are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assel and recognised as income or expense in the
Slalementof Profil and Loss.

{0} FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Afinancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liabiity or equity
instrument of another entily.

(i) FINANCIAL ASSETS:
(A) Classification:

The Company shall classify financial assels as
subsequently measured af amortised cost, fair value
through other comprahensive income (FVOCI) or fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL} on the basis of its business
model for managing the financial assels and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financia: asset.

(B} nitial recognition and rmeasuremeit:

Afinancial assetis classified as measured at

Amortised Cost;
FVOCI-debtinstruments:

- FYOCI-equityinvestment; or- FVTPL

All financial assets are recognised initigily at fair value
plus, inthe case of financial assels not recorded at FVTHL,
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the Tinancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets
thal require delivery of assels within a tme frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place
{regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, ie.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset,

Debtinstruments:

A'debt Instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if
Both the follewing conditions are met:

a) The assel is held within a business model whose
objective is to hotd assets for colfecting contractual cash
ftows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal
andinterest{(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such finencial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR} method. Amorlised cost is
caleutated by taking into account any discount or premium
and fees or costs Hhat are an integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR
amorlisation Js included in finance income in the profit or
joss,

Debt instruments included within the fair vatue through
profitand toss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair vaiue
with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and
toss,

Equity investment:

The Company subseguently measures all aquity
investments in companies other than equity investments in
subsidiary at fair value. Where the Company’s management
has elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in cther comprehensive income or FVTPL, The
Company makes such election on an instument by
instrument basis. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or loss as olher income when the
Company's rightto raceive paymenisis established.

(C) Derecagnitions

A financial asset {or, where applicalle, a part of a
financlal asset or part of similar linancial assels) is primarity
derecognised (Le. remaved from the Company's balance
sheel) when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired, or the Company has transferred itg rights o
receive cash fows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
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material delay to a third parly under a ‘pass-through'

arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred

substantially all tha risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the

Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of (e assel, bul has transferred

control ofthe assetl.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates' if and to what extent it hag
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Company continues 1o recognise the transferred
assel to the exlent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated Hability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvermnent that takes the form of =
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the originat carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could
be required fo repay.

(Y impairment:

In accordance with ind-AS 109, the Company applies
expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial
assels and credit risk exposure:

(@) Financial assets that are debt investments, and are
measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, and bank balance, Lease receivables (b)
Trade receivalles
The Company follows ‘'simplified approach' for
recognition ofimpairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significant

financing componant,

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its assels carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied
depends onwhather there has been a significant increase in
credil risk. Note 37 delails how the company delermines
whether there has been & significantincrease in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the
simplified approach permittied by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

(i) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
{A) Classification:

The Company classifies all financia! liabiiities as
subsequentlly measured at amortised cost, except for
financial #abilities at falr value through profit or loss. Such
liabilties, including derivatives that are fabiities, shall be
subsequently measured al fair value,

(B} Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabifities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial fiabifitles at fair vatue through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designaled as

hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate,
All financiat Hiabilittes are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, nat
of directly attributable fransaction costs.

{C) Derecagnition:

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the cbligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When ar existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is
resognised in the statement of profit or loss,

({i) OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT:

Financial assets and llabilites are offsel and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheel where there is a
legally enforceable right fo offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention Lo settie on a net basis or realise the
assel and setile the liability simultanecusly. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on fulure events
and must be enforceable in the normat course of husiness
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the
Company or the counterparty.

{iv} INCOME RECOGNITION:

Inferest income from debt instruments is recognised
using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected fife of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar opfions) but does
nof consider the expected credif losses.

(f) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash equivatents for the purpose of Cash
Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank
balances, demand deposits with banks where the original
matyrity is three months or less and other short term highly
liquid investments., To be classified as cash and cash
squivalents, the financial asset must:

- be readily convertible into cash;

-have an insignificant risk of changes in value; and

- have a maturity period of three months or less at

acquisition,

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and form an
imegral part of an entily's cash management, and are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
Bank overdrafls are shown within barrowings in current
liabilities in the balance sheet,

() REVENUE RECOGNITION
{A)Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred 1o the buyer,
recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated
costs and possible return of goods can be estimaled refiably,
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there is no continuing management involvement with the
goods and lhe amount of revenue can be measured refiably.

Revenue from the sale of goods Includes excise duly
and is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, net of returns, sales tax and
applicable trade discounls and allowances, chargebacks
and rebates. Revenue includes shipping and handling costs
billed {0 the custemers. The liming of the transfer of risks
and rewards varies depending on the individual terms of the
sales agreements,

(B} Exportincentive

Duty drawback is recognised at the time of exports and
the benefits in respect of advance license received by the
Company against export made by it are recognised as and
when goods are imported againstthem.

{C)Interest Income

Revenue from interest is recognised on accrual basis
and determined by contractual rate of interest,

(D) Dividend Ihcome

Dividend income is stated at gross and is recognised
when rightlo receive payment is established.
{h) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The company has various schemes of relirement benefits
such @s Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and Gratuity
Fund duly recognised,

(i} Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits that are expected 1o be setlled whoily
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees' services uplothe end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected {0 be
paid when the liabilities are setded. The fiabilities are
presented as current employee beneit ohbligations in the
balance sheet.

The empioyees of the company are enfitled to leave
benefils as per the policy of the Company. They are
therefore measured as the present vatue of expected future
payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporling period using the
projected unit eredit method. The henefils are discounted
using the market vields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation. Re-measuwrements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised inother comprehensive income.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
balance sheel if the entity does nol have an unconditional
right fo defer settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, regardless of when the actusl seltlement is
expectedto ocour,

{#l} Post-employment obligations

The company operates the following post-employment
schemes:

Gratuity Obligations .

Maintained as a defined benefit retirement plan and
contribulion is made to Gratuity Fund established as Trust

mainfained by the company. The fiability or asset
recognised in the balance sheelin respect of defined benefii
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefi
obligation al the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined bencfit oldigation is
celeulated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method,

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is
determined by discounting the estimaled future  cash
outflows by reference ic market vields at the end of the
reporting period on government bonds that have terms
apjroximaling to the lerms of the related obligation. The net
interast cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obiigation and the falr
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss,

Re-measurement gains and losses arising  from
exparience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recognised in the period in which they
oceur, directly in other comprehensive income, They are
included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in
equity and in the balance sheet. Changes in the present
valle of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in
profitorloss as past service cost.

Provident Fund -

The company pays provident fund contributions lo a
fund administered by Government Provident Fund
Authority. The Company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are accounted for as defined conlribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recoghised as
anassetlo the extent that a cash refund or a reduction inthe
future payments is availablo.

Superannuation Fund -

With respect to Superannuation Fund, which is
maintained for few employess is contributed Life fnsurance
Corporation of India under LIC Superannuation Policy
(M LEASES

leases in which a significant portfon of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operaling leases. Loase payments under
leases are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
unless the lease payments to the lessor are strictured to
increase in line wilh expected  general inflation to
compensate for the lessor's expected Inflationary cost
increases, in which case the same are recognised as an
expense in fine with the contractual term,

(y FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(iy Presentation Currency

These consolidated financial statemenis are presented in
INRwhich is the Functional Currency of the Company.

(i) Transactions and balances
The foreign currency balances receivable/payable ag at

68)

LAt



a5
i

the year end are ¢onveried al the closing rate and exchange
difference has been recognised in the statement of Profit
and l.oss. The company classifies all ils foreign operalions
as integral in nalure.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translating of any net investment in foreign entities, and of
other financial instruments are recognised in other
comprehensive income,

(k) TAXES ON INCOME

Cutrent incoms tax s recognised basad on the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using fax rales
and lax laws that have been enacled or substantially
gnacted on the date of balance sheel.

Deferred income lax is provided using the liability
method, on femporary differences arising belwgen the lax
bases of assets and Hablllies and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred fax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses only If it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be avallable to ufilise these temporary
differences andlosses.

If the Company has carry forward unabsorbed
depreciation and fax losses, all deferred tax assels are
recognised only fo the extent there is virual certainty
supported by convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax
assels canberealised.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are offset when there
is a legaily enforceable right fo offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances refale o the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either fo settle un a net basis, orio realise
the asset and seflle the Hability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or foss,
except to the extent that it relates to flems recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(HEARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed using the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed
using the weighted average number of shares and dilutive
equity eguivalent shares outstanding during the period,
exceptwhen results will be anti-dilutive,

{m) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ANRD

CONTINGENT ASSETS

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outfiow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to sellle the presentebligation at the balance sheet
date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted
basis.

Provision in respect of joss contingencies relating to
claims, ftigation, assessment, fines, penalties, elc. are
recognised when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably,

Acontingent liabliity exists when there is a possible bt
not probable obligation, or a presenl obligation that may, g
probably will not, require an oulllow of resources, or a
present obligation whose amount cannot be eslimated
refiably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, hut
are disclosed, unless the possibility of outffow of resources
isremote.

Conlingenl assels are neither recegnised nor disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
contingent assels are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in
which the change occurs.

(n) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segmenis are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the chief
operating decision maker.
(0} RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Development of expenditure of certain nature is
capitalised when the criteria for recognising an intangible
asset are met. The revenue expendilure on Research &
Developmentis wrilten offin the yearin which il is accrued.

(p) INVENTORIES

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (Weighted
average basis) and the net realisable value after providing
for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. Cost includes afl charges in bringing the goods
to the point of sale, including octrof and other levies, fransit
insurance and receiving charges. Work-in-progress and
finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads,
(q) GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES

Government incentives that the Company is enlilled to
on fulfillment of certain condilions, but are available {o the
company only on comptetion of some other condilions, are
recognised as income al fair value an completion of such
other conditions,

Incentives that the company is enfitled to unconditionally
on fdiitment of cerlain conditions, such incentives are
recognised at fair value as income when lhere is reasonable
assurance thatthe incentives will be received.

Z. New standards / amendments that are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the
Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rulgs, 2018 (the 'Rules’) on 28th March, 2018. The rules
shalt be effective from reposting periods beginning on or
after 1stApril, 2018 and cannct be early adopted.

(&) Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On
March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has
notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Coniract with,
Customers. The core principle of the new standard is thatan
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services 1o customers in an amount that
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Notes (o Accounts - Contd,

reflocts the consideration to which the entity expeacts to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Further the
hew standard requires enhanced disclosures about the
nNature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.
The standard permits two possible methods of transition:

Retrospective approach - Under this approach the
standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior
reporling period presented in accordance with ind AS 8-
Accounting Folicies, Changes in Accounling Estimates and
Errors

Refrospectively with curmnulative effect of initiafly
applying the standard recognised at lhe date of initial
application {Cumuiative catcls - tup approach) - The effeclive
date foradoption of Ind AS 115 ig linancial periods heginnhing
onorafter April 1, 2018,

The Company will adopt the standard on April 1, 2618 by
using the cumulative calch-up transition method and
accordingly comparatives for the year ending or ended
March 31, 2048 wiil not be retrospectively adjusted. The
Company is in the process of assessing the detalled impact
of INdAS 115,

(b} Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration:

On March 28, 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA")
has notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2018 cantaining Appendix B to ind AS
21, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration which dlarifies the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate fo use on
initfa) recognition of the related assel, expense or income,
when an entily has received or paid advance consideration
in a foreign currency.

The amendmeni will come into force § romApril 1, 2018, The
Company has evaluated the effect of this on ithe
consolidated financial statements and the impact is not
material,

The Company intends to adopt amendments
prospectively to items in scope of the appendix that are
initigily recognised on or after the beginning of the reporting
period in which the appendix is first applied (L.e. from Ist
Aprii, 2018),

(c) Amendments 0 Ind AS 40 Inve
Transfers of iwvestment property

The amendments clarily thal wansfers to, or from,
investment property can only be made if there has been a
change in use that is supported by evidence, A change in
use occurs when {he properly meets, or ceases fo meet, the
defination of investmen: property. A change In infension
alene is not sufficient (o supporl a transfer. The
amendments provide two transition optlons. Entities can
chovse to apply the amendment either retrospectively
without the use of hindsight or prospectively to changes in
use thatoceuron or after the date of Initial application.

The Company has assessed the effects of the
amendment on classification of existing property at 1stApril,
2018 and concluded that no reclassifications are required.

The Campany has decided io apply the amendment

stment property -

praspectively to changes in use that occur afler the date of
iniliat application (i.e st April, 2018),
3, Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
requires the use of accounting estimates which, by
definition, will seldom equalthe actual reslis, Management
alsoneedsto exercise judgementin applying the company's
accounting policies,

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated.
They are based on hislorical experience and other factors,
including expeclations of fulure evenis that may have a
financial impact on the company and that are believed to be
reascnable under lhe circumstances,

The following are the judgements and estimates that the
management have made in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amoun(s recognised in the financial
statements,

i Impairment oftrade receivable:

The impairment provisions for trade receivahiles are based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgemeant in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculztion, based on the Company's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

i} Post-employment benefits:

The costs of providing pensions and other post-employment
benefits are charged to the income stalement in accordance
with Ind AS 19 'Employee benefils' over the pericd during
which benefit is derived from Lhe employees’ services, The
costs are assessed on the basis of assumplions selected by
the managemenl. These assumptions include fuiure
eamings and pension increases, discoun{ rates, expected
long-terim rates of return on assels and mortality rates.

) Sales relurns and rehates:

Revenue is recognised when title and risk of loss is
passed to the customer, reliable estimates can be macle of
relevant and all relevant obligations have been fulfilled,
such that the earnings precess is regarded as heing
completed.,

Gross turmover is reduced by rebates, discounts,
allowances and product returns given or expected to he
given, which vary by product arrangements and buying
groups. These arrangements with purchasing erganisations
are dependent upon the submission of claims some time
after the initial recognition of the sale,

Bacause the amounts are estimated they may not fully
reflect the final outcome, and the amounts are subject o
change dependent upon, amongstother things, the types of
buying group and product sales mix,

Future events could cause the assumptions on which the
accruals are based (o change, which could affect the future
resufts of the Company,

iv) Assumplions are also made by the Mmanagement wilh
respect to valuation of inventories, evaluation of
recoverability of deferred (ax and contingencies,

[335
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Noles to Accounts - Contd.

4 Property, Plant and Equipment

{¥ In Lakhs)

Freshold land

Buifdings T i 778 - a2 32 748
Plant & equipmeni 604 40 Ga4 45 45 589
Furniture & Fittngs BB 44 130 22 22 108
Vehicles 161 2 160 - 28 28 132
Olliee equipment 31 3 34 - 11 ikl 23
Compuiers 171 9 180 - &7 57 123

TOTAL 1,838 44 1,934 - 196 196 1,738

Frieehokd land

- - 8 - B - 8

Buildings 78 4 - 782 32 32 64 718
Plant & equipment 644 9 - 653 45 45 90 563
Furniture & Fittings 13G 5 - 135 22 23 45 90
Vehicles 160 - 2 152 28 26 53 99
Office equipment 34 - - 34 11 ir7 28 6
Computers 180 g - 189 57 35 g2 97
TOTAL 1,934 27 8 1,953 196 178 373 1,580

G Intangible Assets

(TIn Lakhs)

Trademarks
Computer Software

TOTAL

Trademarks
Compuler Soflware

TOTAL




Anglo-French Brugs & Indusiries Limited

Noles to Accounts - Contel,

(T In Lakhs)

& Non-Crrrent investmants

Al lnvestments in equity instruments (Tully paid;
(i} Cuoted -
In Other entities (Equity fnvestments at Fair value through other
comprehensive incoma) :

5,760 (2017 & 2016~ 5760) Eauity shares of INR 10 each in Industrial 4 4 4
Development Bank of India Limited

19,400 (2017 3 2016- 19,400} Equity sharos of INR 10 each in Vijaya Bank 10 13 G
Total Investment in equity instruments 14 17 10
Total non-current Investments 4 17 10
Aggregate amount of guoled investments 4 17 10
Market value of quoted investments 14 17 10

7T TRADE RECEIVABLES

Dowbditrd

Receivables from related parties B - -
Receivables other than from related partios 126 129 129
Less: Provision for doubtiul debls 126 129 129
Total trade receivables (nen-current) - - -

8 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Security deposits 91 161 73
Fixed deposits with bank (wilh maturity period of more than 12 maonths} 3] 58 16
Total other non-current financial assets 59 159 39

9 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Capital advances - - 48

Deferred rent expense for security deposit assets 25 15 3

Clher deposits 3 2 2

Total othar non-current assets 28 17 53
72}

LL4]



Notes to Accounts - Conld.

{¥1n Lakhs)

184 INVENTORIES

Raw materials 1,442 1,213 673
Packing materials 370 351 268
Work-in-progress 172 108 85
Finished goods* 1,453 1,379 847
Stores and spare parls * 628 529 228
less:Provision for inventorics " - 227
Total inventories 4,065 3,560 1,878
*includes Stock of samplas and pramctionat ems in the hands of sales
reprasentatives Rs 82 Lacs
“*Closing stock of Finished goods includes samples amouinting to Rs, 55 Lacs,
which are not meant for sale.
Raw malerials & Packing malerials are valued al woighted Average method , WIP
& Finished Goods at Standard Price and stores and spares al cost,
11 TRARE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, considered good
Receivable from related parties - - -
Receivable from other than refated parfies 2,632 2,898 2777
Total trade receivables {current) 2,632 2,598 2717
12 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Balances with Banks
- Gurrent Accounts 104 13 26
Cash in hane 3 1 3
Stamps in hand - - .
Total cash and cash equivalents 197 14 29
13 OTHER BANK BALANCES
Fixed deposits maluring within 3 - 12 months 72 41 75
Margin money
Total other bank balances 72 “ 75
14 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Security Deposits
Related Party 13 13 13
Security deposils 59 48 53
Total other current linancial assets 72 61 83
15 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Gpening balance G4 63 45
Less: Tax payable for the year - Z 17
Add: Taxes paid 1 5 2
Add! (Less): Refund/ adjustment for earlier years {2) {3}
Closing balance 65 G4 21
MAT cradit entillement 19 19 36
. Total current tax assets (net) B4 a 62
16 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Propaid expenses 159 184 94
Deferred rent expense on securily deposit given 8 7 5
Other advances 1,359 GoB 110
Total other current assets 1.536 709 809

3
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Aunglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

Noles to Accounts - Conld.

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{ZIn Lakhs)

AUTHORISED
2,000,000 Equity Shares of INIZ 10 each 200 200 200
(2017 & 2016- 2,000,000)
200 200 200 )
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & FULLY PAID
1,162,500 Equity Shares of INR 19 cach 116 16 116
{2017 8 2018- 1,162,500}
Of the above 704,000 Equily Shares are issued by way of Bonug
Shares by capitalisation of General Resarve
146 16 116

{i} Reconcifiation of equily share capital

As at April 1, 2016

1,162,500
Change during the year - B
As at March 31, 2017 1,162,500 116
Change during the year - -
As at March 31, 2018 1,162,500 8

(ii} Rights and preferences attached to equity shares ;

The group is having only one class of equity shares cairying a nominal value of INR 10 per share,
including voting rights and entitlement to dividend. Every holder of the equily shares of the groug
of liquidalion of the group, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remai

creditors. The distribution to the eguity shareholders will be in proportion of the number of shares held by each shareholder,

{ii} Details of Shareholders holding mare than § percent shares in the group

These shares rank parl passu in all respecty
) is entitled to one vole per share held in the event
ning assets of the group afler the distribulion / repayment of all

S Al March 21, 2

(i) Abhay Kanoria Family Trust 701,745 60.36 701,745 60.36 348,775 30.08
represented by Mr. Abhay Kanoria

(2) Sml. Pallavi Kanorla - - - - 351,970 30,28

(3) Life Insurance Coporalion of lndia 90,000 7.74 90,000 774 90,000 7.74

2
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Noles lo Accounts - Conld.
18 QTHER EQUITY

(¥ in Lakhs)

(a)} RESERVES ANI} SURPLUS
CAPITAL RESERVE
SECURITIES PREMIUM RESERVE

GENERAL RESERVIE

SURFLUS/ (DEFICIT) IN STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

{b} OFHER RESERVES

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income- Equity Instrumeint

Total other equity

43 43 43
70 70 0
549 549 549
(317) 787 765
345 1,449 4,428
4 8 .
349 1,457 1,428

(i} CAPITAL RESERVE

Opening Balance 43 13
Adjustiment during the year ]
Closing Balance 43 45
(i) SECURITIES PREWMIUM RESERVE
Cpening Balance 70 70
Adjusiment during the year
Closing Balance 70 70
{iii) GENERAL RESERVE
Opening Balance 549 549
Adjustment during the year
Closing Balance 549 549
(tv) SURPLUS! (DEFICIT} N STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
Opening Balance 787 65
Add: Profil/ (Loss) during the year as per Statemient of Profit & Loss {1,124) 40
Other comprehensive income recognised disectly in retaned earnings

- Remeasurements of pogt-employment beneiit obligation, net of fax

20 (19}

Closing Balaince (317) 787
{b) OTHER RESERVE
OTFHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Opening Balance 8 -
Adjustments during the year

- Remeasurernents of quoted equily shares (1) 4
Closing Balance 4 8

Nature and purpose of Resorves

(i) Capltal Reserve

Capital Reserve represants the statulory reserve created by the group as per requirement of the Act. The

utilised by the group for issuing Tully paid bonus shares.

(i) Securities premium reserve

same can be

Securities premium reserve is used to record the pramium on issue of shares, The reserve is ulilised in accordance wilh

the: provisions of the Companies Act,

(iii) General Reserve

General Reserve reprasents the slalutory reserve, this is in accordance with Indian Corporate law whergin a portion of
profit is apportioned to general reserve, Under Companies Act, 2013 fransfor of any amount to General reserve is at the

discretion of the group,

]
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Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

Noles to Accounts - Conlg,

Zln Lakhs)

19 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS

Term Loans from Banks .
Secured

HDFC Bank Lid, - - 27

YES Bank L. 97 85 -

Car finance loans from hanks 23 44 70
Term Loans from Others (NBFC)

JM Financial Products Limited 774 - -
Fotal Non-current botrowings - 894 140 97
Current maturities of long-term delxt (incivded in note 25) 157 7 108
Currenl malurities of car finance loan {included in nete 25) 19 24 22

Total

PARTICULARS OF TERM BORROVVINGS -

al Security

(i} The Gompany has mortagaged its land at Peenya and first charge on Plant Machinery of the Company on the term loapn taken from YIS Banl,

(i) Vehicle loans are secured by hypothecation of vehicles.

(lif) Term Joan from JM Financial Products Limited is secured at first ranking & exclusive charge by way of equitable mortgaga on residential

preperty of Sudarshan Services Lt

QL..I“.@!.‘JIL&QLEQ}EHI?_Q!.@!Jﬂ.il!&tﬁ_‘ﬂ.fﬂ@m{

(i) The company has taken term foan from YES Bank which carnry intere:

the term loan will be completed in February 2020,

ii) In respect of Vehice loans repayments are done by eauated monthly nstallments over 36 1o 60 months.
! Y 84

(iii} Term Loan from JM Einancial Products Limited carries interest
will be cempleted in March 2028,

at the rate of 10.00%, repayable in 120 equal monthly instaliments. Repayment

st at the rale of 10.20%, repayable in 37 equal instaliments. Repayment of

20 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Securily deposils 296 307 317
Cther llabilities 4 4 4
Total other non-current financial liabilities 300 3N 321




Noles to Accounts - Conid,

21 Empiayce Benefit Obligation (¥in Lakhs)

Leave Encashiment - Unfunded

Frosent vatue of obligation 15 57 72 4 48 62 13 41 54
Gratuity - Funded

Present value of obligation 241 241 251 - 261 102 - 162
Fair vadue of plan assets 201 201 218 - 219 198 - 198
MNet Liabilily 40 10 32 - 32 (3) B - (B}
Total employee benefit obligation's 55 o7 112 A5 48 94 7 41 48

{IMefined encfit plans
a) Gratuidy

The group provides for gratuity for employees in Indiz as per the Payment of Gratdity Act, 1972, Gratuity plan is a funded plan and the group makes
contributions 1o Kolak Graluity Group Plan {UNE1071.010v0S),

b} Leave Encashment

As per the policy of the group, clbligations on agcount of encashment of accumuiated leave of an employon is setlled andy on lermination! retirement
of the empioyen, Such liabllity is recagnised on the basis of actuarizl valuation foflowing Projeat Unit Gredit Methad. It is an ufunded plan. The
group does not have an unconditionat tight 1o defer setllement for any of these oiligalions, However, based on past experience, the group does not
expoct all employees to take the [l amount of accrued leave or require payment wilhin the nexd 12 months,

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The group makes contributicns lowards provident fund which are in the nature of defined contribution post employment benefits plans. Under the
plan, the group is required to conbribute a speciied percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefils.
The group has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit & Loss for defined contribution plan

(Ffn Lakhs})
1 Marcha1,2017 |

a) Supperannuation Fund 10 7

b} Provident Fund 44 42

(iii) Movement of defined bencfit obligation and fair value of plan assets -
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movemenls in the net defined benefit ehiligalion over the year are as follows:

{TIn Lakhs)

[ April 1, 2016 192 i98 (6) 54

Current service cost 29 - 29 18
Interest axpense/ (income) 4 14 - 3
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 43 14 29 21
Remeasurements

Loss due lo experience 1 - 21 4
Loss due fo change In financial assumplions ' - 7 2
Relurn on plan assets {greaterless (han discount

rale - 14 (i4) -
Total amount recognised in other 28 14 14 ]
camprehensive income

Employer contributions - 5 () -
Benefil payments {12} (12} - 119
March 31, 2047 251 219 3z 62
Aprit 1, 2017 251 “19 3z 62
Current service cost 23 23 19
Inlerest expense/ (Income} 18 5 3 4
Total arount recognised in profit or loss 44 15 26 23
Remeasurements

Loss due o experiance (145) - {15) (2}
Loss due to change in financial assumplions {3 - (3} {1
Relurn on plan assets {(grealer) loss than discount

rate . - - - -
Total anmoun recognisad in other {18) - {18) 3y

comprehensive income

Employer contributions - - -
Beanefit payments 33 33 - 1o
Mazrch 31, 2018 241 201 40 72

::]
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Anglo-French Drugs & Indusivies Limited

Tho nel Hability disclosed ahove refales 1o funded and unfunded plary gre as folfows:

{

Zin Lakhs)

Present value of funded obligations 241 251 102
Fair value of plan assels 201 219 198
B Egl@[ﬂjyndedgan ‘‘‘‘‘ - - - 4 g?“__m (G)W :
Unfunded plans 2 62 54
%ﬁ"t}_f—i;:-i?gf“gﬁﬁﬁoyee Benefit Plans o 2 94 416 -

iv) Post-Employment henafits *

The significant actuarial assumptions wers as Tolloves:

Discount rate

7.683% 7.43% 7.91%
Salary growlh rate 6.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Expected return on assels 7.63% 7.43% 7.91%
Inchiar Indian Indian
Assured Lives Assured Lives Assured Lives
hMortality Morfality Mortality Mortality
{2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)

Withdrawal rate

5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

(v) Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined bene

fit obligation to changes In the weighted prineipal assumy

Ot

ons is:

{

¥n Lakhs)

Gratuity ) ] T T - ]
Discount rate T 1% {14} (1) 16 18
Salary growth rato 14, 1% 14 14 13) {13}
Withdrawal rale 1% 1% 1 1 S‘!)Mﬂ L L

" Leave Enca: T
Digcount rate 1% 1% {8) {5} & &
Salary growth rale T 1% 1% 2 2 {2} {2}
Withdrawal rate 1% 1% 1 - - (ﬂw - {1}

The above sensitivity analyses are based on g cf
oceur, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlated. When caiculating
acluarial asstmptions the same method Le. projected unit credit me
recoghised in the balance sheet.

ENge in an assumption while holding aif ot
the s
thod has been applied

(vi} The major categories of plan assets are as foHows:

e assunplions conslant. in pr
ensitivity of the defined |
as that used for calouiat

actice, this is unfikely (o
benefit obligation to significant
ing the defined benefit lrabifity

investiment func

s with Kotak Gratuity G oup Plan 201 100% 219 100% 168 100%
(UNI-1071.010v05)
Total - o e 201 100% 219 100% 198 100%

The group pays contribution to Kotak Gratuity Group P
by Kotak Gratuily Group Plan {
planned assets - catn

UNI-1 07L010VO5) in totality basis along with
gory / class wise is not available,

an (UNI-T07LGT0VO5), which intirn mvests the
contributions from other participants, the Grou wise,

amaount t various instruments, Ag jt is done
P investment in

1.78F



{vii} Risk exposure

The defined benefit obligalions have he undermentioned risk BAPOSUFES

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation is caloulated using a discount rale based on government bonds, If bond yields fall, the defined
henedfit obligation will {end to increase.

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase Ihe defined benefit obligation.

Demagraphic risk : This s the rigk of vagiability of results due (o unsystematic nature of decrements that include morlality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not siraight forward and depends upon the combination of salary
increase, discount rale and vesting criteria,

(viii) Defined benefit Gability and employer contributions
Expected contribution to post employmenl benelit plan for the year ending March 31, 2018 is 27 lacs.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.43 yoars {March 31, 2017 - 13.43 years, Apiil 1, 2016 - 13,10 years) in case of
Graldity and 13.13 years (March 31, 2017 - 13,13 years, Aprit 1, 2018 - 12.82 years) in case of Leave encashment in all the thee years. The
expected matwity analysis of undiscounted graluity and leave encashment is as follows:

Tin Lakhs)

{

March 31, 2018

Gratuity 19 12 13 17 15 165 241

Leave encashment 6 4 4 3 4 51 72

Total 25 16 17 20 19 218 313

March 31, 2017

Gratuity 35 1 10 12 14 169 251

Leave encashment 5 4 : 4 3 3 43 G2

Total 44 15 14 15 17 212 313

April 1, 2016

Gratuity 34 16 8 8 g 7 192

l.eave encashment 5 3 3 2 3 38 54
[ Total 39 19 1 10 12 1585 246




Aunglo-French Drugs & Industries L

sdmited

Noles to Accounts - Conlgl.,

{(FIn Lakhs)

22 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES . NET
Delerred Tax |iabilitics o aceount of ;!

Depracialion 210 219 230

Processing fees of term loan -

Total deferred tax liabilities (a) T T e T

Deferred Tax Assets on accouny of

Accrued expenses deductible On payment 2 [¢] 20

Leave encashment and gratuity 3 8 4

Pfovzsron for debls, advances and nvesimenis 39 40 43

Fair valuation of s securily deposit-Assels - - -

Unabsorbed depreciation and carrfed forward business 360 - -

loss

Less: Deferrad Tax Assels not recognised 194 -
. Total deferred tax mssets (B) T e 210 52 e

Deferred Tax (Assetse/Liabilitios (Net - A-B) - 67 163

In terms of accounting policy nete 1 (k) followed by the
recognised.

Company, deferred lax assels of Re 194 Laes (2017 & 2016- Rs Nil}

have not bean

Movement in deferred tax Habitities :

Restatément.of 1.

As at Aprif 1, 2016
CImrg@d/(Crediled):

- 1o profit and loss {11} - - (11}
- o other comprehensive incoma - - " -
" As at March 31, 5097 219 . T T
Charged/(Creditec):
- o profit and loss 9 N (@)
to othar comprehensive incorme - - ) - -
“As at nTa"Eh“m 2008 o T . Y N T

210

Movement in deferred tax assets

o]

.'S'té'uitbry:. I
|

As at April 1, 2016
Chargud/(Creuimd):

- to profit and loss (14} {3) - 4 - - {13)

- 1o other compmhen‘;wn income - - - {2) - ~ (2}

" As & Marcl 3 LRI L — e T ) IR T B D 52
(Chalgecl/(}redlted):

- to profit and logs {4) {1 - (3) 360 194 168

- to othu compmhon we income - . - B - M S

| AsatMacn 320t [y . NN T N T T

1

80}




Noles 1o Accounts - Conddl,

(Tin Lakhs)

23
GURRENT BORROWINGS

SECURED
Cash Credit from Banks
Axis Bank - - 791
HDFC Bani 682 902 842
YES Bank 532 g12 -
Packing Credit facility from Banks
YES Bank 348 B
Short term loan from others
Warking Capital Loan from
Malionai Small Industies Coporation LLid. 141 144 142
UNSECURED
Inter Corporate Deposit
Related Parly 770 -
Others 1,316 725 347
" Tatal Gurrent borrowing 3,789 2,503 2,122

PARTICULARS OF BORROWINGS :

(i} Cash credit facilities are securad by way of hypothecation of all stock of inventaries hook debts and other current assets of the company, both
prasent and future ranking pari passu, The Company has charge on land, building and Plant & Machinery for the cash credit facility availed from

Yeos Bank.

(i} Working capital loan from National Smatl Industries Corporation Lid is secured by bank guaraniee

h).Te

payment and lirterest rate

(i} Cash Credit from HDFC Bank and YES Bank carry inferest at the rate of 12,.25% and 9.92% raspeciively,

(i) Working Capital Loan from National Small Industries Corporation Ltd carries interest at the rate of 11,95%

(iit} Inter Corporate Deposits genarally carry inlerest at the rate betwaen 10.00% lo 17.00%. These deposils are repayable on mutually agreed

dates.




Anglo-French Ihugs & Indusiries Limited

Notes to Accounts - Conld,

(¥in Laikkhs)

24 TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables 3.246 3,009 2,157
Trade payables to related parlies 3 1 1
" Yotal trade payabies 3,249 3010 2,158
Glassification as required hy MSNE Act
Totat sutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Smalt Enlerprises®
Total outstanding dues of credilors oiher that Micro Enlerprises and Small
Enterprises 3,249 3.010 2,158
Total trade payablos 3,249 3,010 | 2455 |
* Details of dues o Micre Enterprises and Small Enlerprises as defined
under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 (MSME
Act) are based on information made available 1o the group. Nelther was
there any delay in payment nor is any inerest due and rermaining unpaid on
the above,
25 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITHES
Current maturities of long term deit 157 ' 108
Current maturilies of car loan 19 24 22
Unclaimed dividend 5 G L&)
Seecurily deposits 13 - 2
Others:
- Lialiilly for capital expenditure - - 57
- Other payables 874 735 391
Total current financial liabilitios 1,068 8az 586
26 OTHER GURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from customers 7 41 223
Statutory and other dues 315 117 89
Liabilities related (o employeas 103 G7 158
Oliver liahilitles 2080 446G 170
" otal other currert fiabilitie 705 671 650




Nedes to Accounts - Contd.

(¥ 1n Lakhs)

27 REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS
a} Bale of products (including excise duty)

Pharmaceutical / fabrics 11,102 12772
b) Other operating income
Sale of scrap 5 13
Excise duty recovered on operating come 4 1i
Conversion charges / income from job work 21 50
Misceliancous - operating income - 1
Commission received 4 1
Export duty credit/duty drawback 4 18
Total revenue from operations 11,140 12,866

28 OTHER INCOME

interest income 7 10
Interest on others 2 11
Provisions/ Liabilites wrillen back 59 17
Insurance claim jocal 24 1
Miscelianeous income -non operating 9 ]
Total other income ‘ 1 a8

29 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
a) Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock 1,213 673
Purchages 3.680 3,329
4,903 4,002
Less : Sales - 3
Less : Closing Slock 1,442 1.213
Raw Material Consumed 3,461 2,786
b1} Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock 331 268
Purchases 591 934
1,022 1,202
Less: Sales - -
L&ss : Closing Slock 370 331
Packing Material Consumed 652 871
Total cost of material consumed 4,113 3,657

30 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GO0DS, WORK IN
PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Opening Inventorles of 1,379 847
Finished Goods - 108 89
Worl m Progress 1,487 936
Closing Inventories of : 1463 1,379
Finished Goods 172 108
Work in Progiess 1,625 1,487
Total ¢hanges in lnventeries of finished goods, work in progress (138} (551)

ard stock-indrade

31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries & wages 2,084 2,088
Caontribution o prevident and other Funds 152 143
Staff welfare expenses 140 150
Total employee benefits expense 2,386 2,31




Anglo-French Drugs & Industries Limited

Noles lo Acoounts - Conld.

FIn Lakhs)

32 FINANCE COSTS
iterest Exponss
on borrowing frem banks and others 428 330
Other Borrawing Cosls - 1
loan processing chargns
Total finance costs T - ) - - T
33 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Dopreciation of property, plant and equipivent 178 196
Amorlisation of intangible assets 1 1
Total depreciation and amaorlisation expenge kX gt 197
34 QTHER EXPENSES
(o) Oporating, administrative & other expenses
Consumptiom of stares and spares 26 7
Rent 176 148
Rales & taxaes 21 27
Bales tax G2 43
Excise duty 77 601
Repairs & maintenance
Building 12 &
Plant & machinery 88 63
Others 16 15
Insurance charges 19 10
Electricity & water 23 24
Factory power & fuel 134 156
Job-work charges- manufacturing service charges @1 114
Tour & travelling expense 749 887
Vehicle running & maintenance 43 46
Conveyance expensaes 7 25
Legal & professional fee s a5
Membersiiin fee & subscription 49 44
Office & general exponses 88 104
Postage and telagram 12 15
Bank charges 23 46
Frinting & stationary 17 74
Charity & donations 2
Foreign exchange rate fluctisation on exponges 13 34
Fastival & celebration EXpONSes 2 2
Becurity expenses 25 36
Telephone & telex charges 42 G
Laboratory expenses 5 4
ERP expenses - 8
Dirgctors foe 3 3
Trade marks 9 4
Loss on sale of assets 3 -
Audilors remuneration frefor note d(a)) 12 16
{h) Selling & distribution expenses
Selling expenses 7 9
Advertisement & publicity - 1
Business promotion EXPENSES G4z 343
Bad debt written off 5 1
Frovision for doubtful debls - i
Clearing, forwarding & freigint 173
Rebates & discount allowed 162
insurance expenses- goods-in-traisit -
Handiing uxpenses 4
Clearing & forwarding agenis commission 311
Total other expenses - T 3,251
34 (a) Details of Auditors’ remuneration
Audi lee 7 10
Tax audi fee 1 1
For other serviges such as certification 4 5
Total auditors remuneration 12 16 .
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(¥ In Lakhs)

30 TAX EXPENSE
{a) Current tax

Tax on profits for the yoar - 2
Adjustments for prior pericds - 1
Total income tax - 2
(b} Deferred tax
Becrease (increase’ i deferrad Lax assels (158) 15
{Decrease) increase In deferred tax fabilities 2 (11}
(167} 4
Less 1 Recoghised in GCI - {2}
Total deferred tax expense/ (berefii) (167) G
Total tax expense {167) 8
(v} Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Profil before income jax expense (1,291) 48
Tax at the rate of 30.900% (2016 - 30.900%} - 15
Adiustments retated 5o praperty, plant and equ
Adjustment on accourt of depreciable assels (8} {11)
Unabsorbed business loss (166) -
Tax effect of amounts whigl. xabie ngom
Provision for debts, advances and investmenls 1 ]
Adjustment in 438 {on payment basis) 4 14
(167} 21
Income tax adjustments (since Income tax payalde undet MAT - u/s 115J8) - (11}
Tox payable under MAT - ufs 11548 2
Brofit of subsidiary - exempted = {4)
Income tax expense as per Income Tax (167} 8
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36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Financial insfruments by category

(Z1n Lakhs)

Financial assefs

Investments

- Eguity nstruments 14 17 10

Fixed Deposits & 58 16
Trade Roceivalles 2,832 2,898 2077
Cash and cash equivalents 197 14 29
Other Bank Balance 72 41 75
Security deposlis - 453 162 o L _1:19%"__
Total financial Assets 14 3,272 kX 3,173 10 3,036
Financlal llabilitios

Borrowings 4,858 2,824 2,349
Security deposits 309 307 319
Trade payables 3,249 3,010 2,158
Capital craditors « - 57
Unclaimed Diidend |5} 4] 6
Others 878 730 395
Total financial Liabilities - 9,300 - 6,886 - 5,284

(i) Financial assots and liabilities measurod at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Financlal Assets at P'VQC]
Investment in equity shares
Industrial Development Baik of india Limited ! 4 4
Viiaya Bank E 13 5]

Totat financial assets af FVYOCt 4 T

{i) Falr value hierarehy

This section explains the judgements and estimatos Mmade in delermining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at falr value and (b) measured at amartised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements, To provide an
indication about the reliabiiity of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classificd its financial instruments into the three levels
presciiiyed under tihe accounting standard,

Level 1: Leve! 1 hierarchy includes financial instrumanis medsured using quoled prices. This includes fisted equity instruments that have quoted
price. The fair value of all Gquity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporling period,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments Lhat are nol traded i an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise (he
use of observable market data and iedy as lilte as pessible on entity-specific estimates. if all slgnificant inputs required to fair value an nslrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 4: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable markel data, the instrument I8 included In level 2. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities, securily deposits included in lovel 3.

{#i) Assots and liabHities which are measured af amortised cost for which fair valugs are disclosed
All the financial asset and financial fiabilities measured at amortisad cost, carrying value is an approximation of their respective fair vaiue,

{iv) Significant estimates

The fair value of financial instruments that are not aded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The GrouD uses itg
judgemeniio select a variely of methods and make assumptions thal are mainly based on market conditions axisting at the end of each reporting
period,
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37 Financial rlsk management

The group’'s acliviies expose it 1o market risk (i.e., currency risk, interest rate risk and market price risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. This note explains
the sources of risk which the group is exposed W and how the group manages the risk

The group's risk management is caried out by a treasury depariment under policies approved by the Board of Birectors, group Treasury identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation wilh the group's operating units. The board provides principles for overall risk managemend,
as well as policies covering spedific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, cradit risl, use of non-derivalive financial instuments and
inveshment of excass ouidily,

{A) Market risk
(7)) Forefgn carrency rish
The group operales internationaily and is exposed fo foreion exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange ifsk arses

from future commercial (ransactions and recognised assels and fabiilies dencminaled in a currency that is not the res
GLrrency,

pective group’s functional

The exposure of the group to foreign currency fisk is not significant. The position of foreign currency exposure 1o the group as at the end of the year
expressed in INR arg as follows :

(¥in Lakhs)

March 31, 2618
US Dollar (USD) 250

Net exposure to fereign currency risk 250

March 31, 2017
US Dollar (USD)

255 -
Net exposure to forcign currency risk 258 -
April 1, 2016
US Dollar (USD) a07 -
Net exposure to foreign currency risk 407 w

Sensitivity
I INR is deprecialed or appreciated by 5% vis-s-aevis foreign currency, the impact thereof on the profit and loss of the group are given below:

USD sensitivity
INR/ USL Increases by 5% (March 31, 2017 - 5%) 13 13
INR/USD Decreases by 5% (March 31, 2047 - 5%) [§C3] {13

* Holding all olher variables constant

{if) Interost rate risk

The exposure of the group's borrowing to inferest rate changes at the end of the reporting period depends on the mix of fixed rate and floating rate
ol the borrowings and the expected movement of market inleresl rate. The status of borrowings in terms of fixed rale and lleating rate are as follows:

(¥ In Lakhs)

Vasiabie rate borrowings 2,332 1,714 1,633

Fixed rata borrowings 2,527 110 716

Total horrawings 4,859 2,824 2,349
167}
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As at the end of the reporting pariod, the aroup had the following varlalite rate borrowings cutstanding:

March 31, 2094
Bank overdrafts, banic Ioans, Casly creis 11.23 2,332 48%,
WMarch 31, 2017
Bank overdrafls, bank loans, Cash credil 11,16 1,714 51%

April 1, 2016
Banl overdrafts, bank loans, Cash credit 1247 1,633 T0% _]

Sensitivity

Profit o foss is sensitive to higherffower interest expense from borowings us a result of changes in interest rates.

Interest raies - Increase b v 50 basis points (50 bps) *

lnterest rales - vecrease by 50 basis Qints {50 bps) *

(iii} Price risk

The group’s exposure 1o Gily securities price risk arises rom investments held by the groug in equily securilies and classilied in the balance sheet
as at fait value through profit or loss, However, group does not have a practice of investing in market equity securities with & view 1o @arh fair value
changes gain. As per the group policies, whenever any investment % made by the group in equity securities, the same is made cither wilh some
strategic objective or as a part of contractual arrangement, Further, at the reporting date group does not hetd material value of quoted sequrities,
Accordingly, greup is not exposed to significant market price rlsk.

{A) Credit risk
Credit risic anises when a colunter parly defaulls on contractial obligations resulting in financiai loss io the group,

Trade receivables consist of large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geoegraphical areas. In order to mitigate the risk of
financial loss from defaulters, the group has an ongoing credit evaluation process in respect of customers who are allowed credit period. |n respoect
of wall-ir customers the group dees not allow any credit parfod and therefore, is not exposed to any credit risk,

[ general, itis presumed that cradil risk has significantly increased since initial recognition If the ayments are more than 30-120 days past due case
1o case hagis,

(il} Reconciliation of loss allowance provision - Trade regeivableg

Loss allowance on April 1, 2018
Changes in loss aliowange

Loss altowance on Mareh 31, 2017
w-(.Zhia-zzmges in loss allowance
| Lass allewanco on Mare

{B) Liguidity risk
The group has a liuidity risk Managerment frameweork for managing its shorl term, mediam term and long term sources of Tunding viswa-vig short
ferm and Jong term utilization requirement. This is monitorad tirough & rolling forecast showing the expecied net cash flow, fkely avallabifity of cash
and casi equivalents, ang avaiigble undrawy borrowing facilities,

(i} Financing arangements: The position of urirawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period are as Tollows;

“Paricilars ‘Marchia 1

20187

31, 2057

Floating rate
Cash credit W, Taciity 325 40

The bank overdrait and cash arodit facililios may be diawn at any lime ang may be terminated by the bank wilhout nolice.

{88}
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{li Maturitios of financial Uabilities
2% the group's all non-derfvative financiaf liabiillies inte relevant maturity based on thelr contraciual maturities.

The table below analys

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

CGontractual maturities of financlal Habilites:

)

(®In Lakhs

Moa-derivalives
March 31, 2018

Borrowings 3,565 381 813 4,859
Trade payables 3,249 3,249
Security daposits 13 206 309
Other financial liabilities 879 4 4883
Total non-derivative Habilities 8,106 385 809 89,300
1 March 31, 2017

Borrowings 2,684 140 - 2,824
Trade payables 3,010 - 3,040
Securily deposits - 307 307
Cther financial abilities 741 4 745
Total non-derivaiive liabilities 6,435 144 307 6,686
April 1, 2016

Borrowings 2,262 97 - 2,349
Trade payalles 2,158 - - 2,168
Securily deposits 2 - 317 319
Clhar financlal liabilites 454 4 - 4458
Total non-derivative lfabilities 4,866 1M1 317 5,284

[0
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38. Capital management

(a) Risk management

The group's objeclives when managing capital are to safeguard their abifity to conlinue as

a going concern, so that thay can continue

1o provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and maintain an optinal capital struciure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order (o maintain or adjust the capilal structure, The group may adiust the amount of dividends paid {0 shareholders, return capita}

o sharehoiders, issue new shares or seil assels to raduce debt,

Coensistent with others in the industry, The group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (iotal borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by Totat ‘equily’ (as shown in the balance sheet),

The gearing ratios of the group are as follows:

March 31, 2018

Net debt (net of cash and cash aquivalents) 4,859
Tolai equity 465

._.4_.,m__%_mw_%_w.ﬁ_‘.u—m%“m_um_-

March 31, 2017

(Tln Lakhs)
Aprit 1, 2016

2,824 2,349
1,573 1.544

Netdeﬁtmto quity ratio

1045%

180% 152%

150
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a} List of Related Parties

A. Key Manageiment Personinel of the company and close member of Key Management Personnel of the company

) Mr. Abhay Kanorta
i} Mr. Uddhav Kanorta
i) Mr. Upendra G. Patei
ivi Mr. N Ahmedali
v) Ms.Neha Rajen Gada
vi} M. Nirbhay Kanoria
vil) Mr. Pauly Sukumar Nuthakki
viii) Mr, Sanatkumar Shirali
i®) Mr. Manish J agneni (From 12th Feb, 2018)
X} Mr. Naveen Kumar Gupta { upto 11th Aug, 2017)
x} Mr. Aditya Kumar Jain (From August, 2017)
i} Mrs.Pallavi Kanoria (Wife of Mr Abhay Kanoria)
XH) MV B Haribhakif (upto 30th May, 2016}

B, Enterprises which are post employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees,
i) The Anglo French Drug Co. (ESTN) Lid Employee's Gratuity Fund
ii) Group Supperannuation Scheme under LIC of India

C. Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and close member of Key Management personnef have joint control.

i} Aakruti Investments L,
iy Abhay Kanoria Family Trust
iii) Broach Textile Mills Ltd.
iv) Ekta Tie-up Py, Lid.
v) GBK Charitable Trust
vi} Radha Kesari Spinning Mills Lid,
vii) Sudarshan Exports Lid,
viil) Sudarshan Services Lid.
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{h) Transactions with Rolated Parties for the year ended March 31, 2018

(¥ Lakhs)

B P e e U
il) Receiving of Services - Administrative
Cnmmel‘ciai & Accountiny servige

lil}intorest Paig —. 7
Sudarshan Services Lid. 13 -
iv) Remuneration  Puid T D e B I
Yy /\bhay Kanona T ST 54 54 B A —
Mr. Uddhay iKanoria T - Z a5 X R I
Mr. Nirbhay Kanoria - 34 5 o )
wli#rs. Paltavi Kanoria . 18 17 }
Mr. Naveen Kumar Gupta - - 12 3G
’ Mr. Manish Jagnani 2 -
MY, Aditya IKumar Jain 2 - T
| V) Divectors Sitting fee o o
Mr. Sanatkuinar Stirali 0.5 0.5
Ms. Neha Rajen Gada 0.7 0.5
Mr. Upenidia 6. Palel ) 0.5 0.5
Mr. N, Almedali ~ 0.8 (I D
Mr. VB, Haribhalt| Q 0.3
M Pauly Sukumar Nutlaldk 0.2 0.3
RECEIPTS: N o
iy inier ‘Received . B I )
“Sudarshan Sorvicns Tid. ) 50§ -
Contribution of Gratuity Fund
The Anglo French Drug Co, (ESTN} Lid, Employee's T T
Graluily Fundg 5 5
Refund of Gratuity
The Anglo French Drug Co. (ESTN) Lid, Employeets e
Gratuily Fund 32 32

(¢} Qutstanding Balances as on March 31, 2018

AQEIEN
I Relativ

PAYAELES @

t Goods & &mrvrrea

Sudarshan Services Lid,

if} Inter Coproate Deposn

Sudarshan Services § 1.

770 -

ifl) Security Depaosit
[ Mr, Abhay Kanoria

13 13 13

——{ 52}
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40. Contingent liabilities

The group had contingent liabilities at March 31, 2018 in respect of ;

(a} Clalms aguinst the group pending appeilaiefudicial decisions not acknowledged as debts

(TIn Lakhs)

5 I Parlicafars. March:33:2018 1 Maroh 31:201
a} Value Added Tax/Sales Tax 152 186
b) Income-tax - -
¢) Service Tax/ Excise Duly 158 137

The Management believes that the oulcome of the
the group.

{b) Guarantees :

i. Counter guarantees issued 1o banks and remaining cutstanding INR 442 lacs (2017 — INR 565 lacs: 2016 — INR

above will nol have any material adverse effect on the linancial position of

i. Lelter of credit opened and remaining cutslanding INR 193 lacs (2017 — INR € lacs; 2016 ~ NIL).

41 Leases
(&) Non-cancellable operating leases
As a bessee

The group has entered into operating lease arrangements primarily for office premises,
During the year, the group has recognised lease rent expense of INR 168 Lacs (

514 lacs)

godown and guest house for its employess,
2817 INR 138 lacs) related fo such non-cancelable

operating lease. The future minimum lease payments payable by the group taken under non-cancefiable operating lease, are as

under;-

(ZIn Lakhs)

SParliculars

March 315 2077

Apel

Commitments for minimum lease payments in
refation lo non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

161

569

16

16t
624

122
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42 (a)Details of Raw Materials Consumed

¥ln Lakhs)

@
HTCALS
Calclum B Pantohenate 12 Kgs 74,393 662 30,881 843
Ascoric Acid Kgs 20,694 914 101,686 522
Mizscellangous - 1,864 1409
(None individually account for more that 10%
of tatai consumption)
RNISHING FABRICS
Kgs - - 6.218 12
3,460 2,766

(h) Value of Raw Materials Stores and Spare Parts consumed;

{ZIn Lakhs)

- Préviols Year

{ ¢) Purchase of Stock «in-Trade

a) Raw & Packing Materlals:
Imported o - . -
Indigenous 3,151 1Q0 2,786 100
3,480 1006 2,786 100
i2) Stores and Spare Parts
limported - ~ - -
Indigenous 26 100 7 100
L T LN R T ]

(¥ln Lakhs)

[

Farmidations:
a} Tablels Million 184 1,003 139 2t
b} Liquids Boltleg 4,255 385 396 15,804 4358 G72
¢} Injections Lilres 79,247 124 63,863 155
d) Capsules iillion 36 386 56 624
e) Granules Kys 2,863 3 1,622 3
f} Powder Kgs 110,437 116 40,985 50
g} Qintment Kgs 48,712 241 63,445 lirg
I} Raw Materials IKgs - - - -
i) Packing Materialg IKgs - - - -
J) Others Nos. 618,890 46 71
k) Fabrics -

2,312 2,883

{€In Lakhs)
o ot

i} Raw Materialy
) Components and Spare Farts

Expenditure in Foreign Currency

123 170
F.O.B Value of Exports
In Foreign Currency 916,240 593 J 1,064,167 ?OS-J

{94}

i
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43. The subsidiaryof the company "Angle French Diugs & Industries PTE. Limited Singapore (AFDIPLY has incurred a net loss of Re. 5 Lacs during
the year ended 31st March, 2018 and, as of (hat date, AFDIPL current liabiities exceeded ils current assets by Rs 116 Lacs and its total liabililios
exceeded its lolal assets by Rs 122 Lacs, These factors indicale the existance of & material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt over the
AFDIL’s ability to continue as a going concern. However, as per the views of auditors of the subsidiary company, the ability of the Company to
continue az @ geing concern is dependent on the undertaking of its iminidialeand wlimate holding cornpairy. Holding Compainy has 1o provide
continuing financial support to enable the Company o meel its liabililies as and whes they fall dus.

I addition, if the AFDIPL were unabie (0 contine in operational exisience for the loreseeable fulure, the AFDIPL may have 1o reclassy non-current
assels and labililies as current assets and liabilities. No such adjustmenis have been made to the financial slatements of AFDIPL as on 31st
March, 2016,

44. Increase in cost of materials, restriction in increment of sale price (MR} in refation 1o increment of manufactiring cost of product under non-
scheduled formulation as prescribed by Nationat List of Bssontial Medicine (NLEM) and overall reduclion in sales volume has adversely affected
the operating result of the Holding Company. The Holding Company has incurred loss before lax amounting to Re. 1,288/~ Lags during the vear
2017-18 in the soparate financial slatement. The management of the Holding Company ig working on the effecliveness of manufacturing cost
as welt as lo incroase sales volume for generating the operating surplus in near fifure.

45. Operating Segmant
The Flolding Company has only one reportabla segment Le. pharmaceticals Zln Lakhs)

Information ahout Geographical Areas:

Revenue from customers

In India 10,6185 12,194

Qutside India 512 G40

Naon-current assets

I India 1,724 1,935

Outside India -

infermation about major customers

Consolidated Revenue-exgeeding 10% from each single customer NIL ML

48, Earnings per Equily share

(&} Basic earnings per share {96,69) 3.44
() Riluted earmings per share (8G,89) 3.44

(e} Recontiliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share

Profit attributable 1o the equity holders of the company used in caleulating basic garnings per share: {1,124) 40

Profit atributable 1o the equily holders of the company used in calculaiing diluied earmings per share (1,124) 40

{d} Welghted average number of shares used as the denoeminator

Particilars

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic eamings por share 1,162,500 1,162,500

Adjustments for calculation of diluted eamings per shara:
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the denominator in calculating
diluted earnings per share 1,162,500 1,162,500

47 Research and Development Expenses

(FIn Lakhs)

Matcrial Consumption a 3
Laboratory consumption - 11
Employee Benefils Expense 16 13
Others 1 1

20 28 |

['G5)
L
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48 First-time adoption of Ind AS
Transition to Ind AS

These are the group’s first financial statements prepared-in accordance with Ind AS,

The accounling policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial slatements for the year ended March 31,
2018, the comparative information presented in these financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the
preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at Aprif 1, 2016 {date of transilion to Ind AS). in preparing its opening Ind AS
balance sheot, the group has adjusted the amounis reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notifled under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008 (as amended) and other relgvant provistons
of the Act.

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemplions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous
GAAP 1o ind AS,

A, Exemptions and exceptions availed
Al ind AS optional exemptions

(a) Deemed cost

ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopler lo elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as
ils deemed cost as at the date of transition. This exemplion is aiso used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible
Assels.

Accordingly, the group has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at their previous
GAAP carrying value, which has been considered as deemed cost,

A2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
(a) Estimates
Estimates made under Ind AS as at Apsil 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as under previous GAAP.

(b} Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires that an entity should assess the classification of its financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances
exist o the date of transition, Accordingly, in ils Opening ind AS Balance Sheel, the group has classified all the financial assats on
the basis of facts and ciroumstances that existed on the date of fransition, i.e., Aprl 1, 2018.

{96}
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49, Reconciliation between previous GAAP and Ind AS :

1 Reconcillation of total equity as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

(¥ 1In Lakhs)

Tolal equity {shareholder's funds) as per previous GAAP 1,560 1,530
Adjusiments

Fair valuation of equity invastiments 1 11 3
Fair valuation of security deposits paid 2 (1) [4}]
Processing Charges 3 1 1
Fair Valsalion of Gratuity Liability 4 12 11
Tax effecls of adjustments 53 -

Total adjustments 23 14
Total eqguity as per nd AS 1,573 1,544

. Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 34, 2017

(¥In Lakhs)

Partictlars

Profit after tax as per pravious GAAR 20
Adjustments

Fafr valuation of secwily deposits paid 2 (2)
Processing Charges on Borrowings 3 (1}
Fair Valuation of Gratuity Liability 4 2
Remeasurement of Post-employment benefit obligations {Net of Tax) ¢ 21
Total adjustments 20
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 40
Other comprehensive income (Nat of Tax) 1&G (11}
Total comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 28

lil} impact of Ind AS adoption on cash flow statoment for the year ended March 31, 2017

(¥1n Lakhs)

Net cash flow from operaling activities

Nel cash llow from investing activities 23

MNet cash flow from financing activities 110 34

Olhers (urrreatised forex gain / loss) {34)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis (46) (3} (15}
Cash ang cash equivalents as at April 1, 2016 o8 “ 29
Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2017 52 - i4

The impact in cash flow slalemant are due 1o adjustments explained below.

1| Fair valuation of equity investments

stalement of profit and loss.

The group holds investment in Equity Shares of entities other than subsidiaries, associate and joint venture. Under previous GAAP
such investments were measured at cost less provision for other than temporary nature diminution in the value of investment,

Under Ind AB, these investments has been measured at falr value, The group has categorised these invesimenis as fair value
through other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH and any changes in fair value of those investment has been recognised in the
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2. | Fair valuation of security deposits paid

Under the previous GAAP, interest fres lease g
term) are recorded at their transaction value. U
recognition and subseguently at amortised cost. Accordingly, ©
Difference between the fair value and fransaction value of the s

ectrity deposits assets (thal are refundab)
nder Ind AS, all financial

€ in cash on completion of the contract
assels are required to be recognised at fair value at initial
The group has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS.
ecurity deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent.

3. | Processing Charges on Borrowings

it relztes.

adjustment to retained earnings.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are reco
some or alf of the facilities will be drawn down. To the ext
will be drawn down, the fee is capital

Ind AS 109 requires transaction cost inc

urred towards origination of borrowings to be deducted #
borrowings o initial recognition. These costs are recoghised in the profit and loss over the fenure
interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method, Under previous GAAPR, these trar

profit and foss as and when incurred. Accordingly borrowing as on the date of transition have bee

gnised as transaction cost of the loan to the extent that # is probable that
ent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or alf of the facilities
ised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of facilities to which

om the carrying amount of
of the borrowings as part of the
nsaction cosis were charged to
n reduced with a corresponding

4.} Fair Valuation of Gratuity Liahility

requirement of Ind AS.

Adjustments made in the gratuity liabfiity as on the date of transition i.e, Aprit1, 2016 as well as March 31, 2017 ag per the

5. | Tax effects of adjustments

Additienal deferred tax asset/ {liability)
as a result of Ind AS Implementation.

has been recognised corresponding to the adjustments 1o retained eamings/ profit or logs

6. | Remeasurement of Post-employment benefit obligations (Net of Tax)

Under Ind AS, ali items of income and expense reco
standard requires or permits olherwise. items o
statement of profit and foss as ‘ofher conreh
other comprehensive income did not exist und
obligation has been reclassified to the Ot

gnised in a period should be included in profit er loss for the period, unless a
fincome and expense that are not recagnised in profit or loss but are shown in the
ensive income’ includes remeasurements of defined
&1 previous GAAP. Accordingly,
her Comprehensive Income for the periad,

benefit plans, The concept of
ioss on remeasurements of post-employment benefit

§0. Intersects in othor entity:
Subsidiary

The group’s subsidiary as al March 31
equity shares that are held directly by
country of incorporation or regisiration

+ 2018 is set out below. Uniess otherwise stated,
the group, and the ownership interests held equals
is also their principal place of business,

it has share capital consisiing solely of
the voling rights held by the group. The

Anglo French Drugs & Industries Ple. Lid.

Singapore

100 100 100

Trading in
pharmacewtical
products.

For KAMG & ASSOQCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 3110275

Arpit Parasmal Shah
Partner

Membership Number 18094¢
Mumbai, 30tk May, 2018

Manish Jagnani
Chief Financial Officer

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N. Ahmedali

Abhay Kanoria

Director Chairman & Managing Director
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{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part ‘A" Subsidiaries

Information in respeot of subsidiary with amounts in Lacs,

11 Sl No.

2] Name of the subsidiary

Anglo Franch Drugs & Industries Pl Lid,

3 | Date on which subsidiary was acquired

Sth April, 2013

Reporting period for the subsidlary concerned, i
4 | different from the holding company's reporling
period

Mot Applicable

Reporting curreney and Exchange rate as o lhe
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsldiarics

o

LSS (INR 65.0441 / 1SS

6 | Share capital 28
7 1 Reserves & surplus (147}
8| Tolal assets 154
9 | Total Liabifities 276
10 | Investments -
11 | Turnover 85
12 1 Profil hefore taxation (&)
13 | Provision for laxation -
14 | Profit after taxation {5}
15 ]| Proposed Dividend -
16 | % of sharehokling 100%

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : None

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liguidated or sold during the year : None

52, Additional information as required under Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary.

SAs S of
Consolitated
2 iet:asset

Consofidated:

profilorioss ]

R 8

Parent

Anglo French Drugs & industries Ltd. 165.81% Fal 83.27% (836} 100.00% 16 83.03% (820)
méuhsidial'ies

indian - - - - - - -
Fareign
“;'-\nglo French Drugs & Industries Ltd, B5.81% {308) 16.73% (188) 0.00% - 16.974% (188} ’

53, The previous year figures have been regrouped / rearranged whertever necessary to m

ahe It comparable with the cureent yoar.




